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2022 Shareholder Letter 
 
 
Dear Bay Community Bancorp Shareholder: 
 
 
Our Bank reported record profitability and asset growth in 2021.  To management, these full year 
results felt like they came from two distinctly different years as the economy transitioned from 
pandemic constrained to reopening rebound.  Early in 2021, core loan growth was extremely difficult 
to come by and options for adding meaningful earning assets were limited, but around mid-year things 
turned around and there was a noticeable change in the market.  Loan growth picked up and steadily 
gained momentum and we even saw the early signs of rising interest rates.            
 
The focus of our efforts mirrored the economy.  Early in the year we focused on supporting the small 
business relief efforts that were authorized under the Consolidated Appropriations Act, otherwise 
known as the CARES Act.  Among other things this Act authorized $284 billion for additional 
Paycheck Protection Program loans (“PPP”) and provided the US Treasury’s Community 
Development Financial Institutions Fund (“CDFI Fund”) with $12 billion for various types of 
assistance to communities that were disproportionately impacted by the pandemic.  In both cases the 
small business assistance would generally be distributed through Community Development Financial 
Institutions (“CDFI”) and other banks.        
 
Initially core loan demand was weak and loans grew by only $7.8 million or 1.8% in the first six 
months.  We focused on what was available and worked diligently on generating fee and program 
income.  In February, the US Small Business Administration (“SBA”) launched the second round of 
forgivable PPP loans.  In an effort to assure that eligible small and midsized business were not crowded 
out of this important relief program, the SBA established financial carve outs and application 
processing windows exclusively for smaller banks and CDFI’s like ours to better meet client needs.   
 
We took this opportunity and obligation seriously and conducted numerous community outreach and 
educational efforts to raise awareness of this program with even the smallest businesses in our market.  
As a result of these outreach efforts, we made 600 second draw PPP loans, individually as small as 
$461, but totaling $73 million in the aggregate.  These loans produced new deferred fee income of $2.8 
million, while actual forgiveness of 2020 first draw PPP loans brought $581 thousand into actual 
income.   
 
As a result, for the first six months we reported total net income of $4.09 million, a 98% increase from 
the same period in 2020.  These results included a $1.83 million Rapid Response grant from the CDFI 
Fund which was part of the relief effort authorized by the CARES Act.  Our Bank was one of just 863 
financial institutions nationwide that qualified for this program, and as has been historically the case, 
we were awarded the maximum amount available under the program for our community impact 
activities.   
 
  



 
The CARES Act also allocated $9 billion for Treasury to make preferred stock investments directly 
into Minority Depository Institutions (“MDI’s”) and CDFI’s like Community Bank of the Bay through 
the Emergency Capital Investment Program (“ECIP”).  These financial institutions could then leverage 
this capital into small business lending and community development activities.  Treasury began 
announcing program details in March, and we began a dialog with our trade association and Treasury 
to understand if this capital investment made sense for our bank. 
 
While discussions with Treasury continued, the second half of 2021 seemed to turn on a dime.  Loan 
growth came on very strong around mid-year and by the end of the year core loans, not including PPP 
loans had increased $70 million or 16.8% from 2020 and we carried a robust loan pipeline intro 2022.  
As a result, we generated net income of $3.32 million in the last six months of 2021, or an 18% increase 
from the same period in 2020.  Profitability could have been somewhat better except that in spite of 
continued stellar credit quality the loan growth warranted a $350 thousand provision to the loan loss 
reserve.   
 
Even with the accelerating loan growth we found that by year end the combination of new clients and 
substantially increased liquidity in some of our small businesses and non-profit clients had us carrying 
excess deposits that we really couldn’t effectively invest, so we worked about $75 million of marginal 
deposits off balance sheet.  This reduction combined with our typical year end deposit outflow reduced 
Total Assets from $796 million at June 30 to $718 million at December 31. 2021, which still 
represented asset growth of 13.3% for the year.   
 
Meanwhile, Treasury’s ECIP initiative continued to gain clarity and momentum in the second half of 
2021.  On August 11 Treasury released an interim final rule that clarified the Program’s Terms and 
Conditions and updated the application process.  Shareholders are encouraged to review the most recent 
information on the ECIP Program at the US Treasury’s website here: 
 
(https://home.treasury.gov/policy-issues/coronavirus/assistance-for-small-businesses/emergency-
capital-investment-program)  
 
In summary, under the interim final rule, MDI and CDFI banks in good standing were eligible to apply 
for an ECIP investment of up to 15% of Total Assets as of June 30, 2021.  Treasury’s investment will 
be in the form of Perpetual Preferred Stock with favorable terms, including a maximum dividend rate 
of 2.00%, that will be waived in the first two years and then may be “bought down” to 0.50% through 
additional impact lending and activities similar to what we have always done as a mission-driven 
institution.  Importantly, this preferred stock investment will not include the operating constraints or 
carry the negative stigma associated with Treasury’s TARP investments during the financial crisis. 
 
Based on our Total Assets of $796 million on June 30, 2021 we were eligible to apply for an ECIP 
investment of just under $120 million.  On October 18, 2021 Treasury announced that there was strong 
demand from eligible financial institutions for the ECIP investment program.  Treasury announced that 
after reviewing the applications from 204 MDI and CDFI banks and credit unions, the CARES Act 
provided adequate funding to meet approximately 67.9% of the application requests.  
 
  



On December 14, 2021 at the annual Freedman’s Bank Forum in Washington, D.C. Secretary of the 
Treasury Janet L. Yellen and Vice President Kamala Harris announced that $8.7 billion in Emergency 
Capital Investments had been granted to 186 MDI and CDFI banks and credit unions to, among other 
things, provide loans, grants, and forbearance for small businesses, minority-owned businesses, and 
consumers, especially low-income and underserved communities that may have been 
disproportionately impacted by the economic effects of the COVID-19 pandemic. 
 
Community Bank of the Bay is proud to be one of only five banks and six credit unions in California 
to be approved by the US Treasury for investment under ECIP, and we are currently working directly 
with Treasury to close the investment by June 30, 2022 at which time we will be able to announce 
more details including the final investment amount.  Again, we encourage interested shareholders to 
review the ECIP investment program on the US Treasury website.  We are confident that you will 
agree that this program provides a potentially transformative opportunity for both our Bank and the 
communities we serve.  As you are well aware, we are California’s first FDIC insured financial 
institution to be certified as a CDFI by the US Treasury.  We have been making, and have been 
consistently recognized for, the kind of impact lending and community development activities that the 
ECIP investment was designed to encourage for over twenty-six years now, and at least since 2010 we 
have done so while growing over ten-fold, maintaining high credit quality standards and generating 
steadily increasing profits for our shareholders.   
 
Management and the board have worked diligently to prepare for this investment capital and we are 
confident that any investment, whether it is preferred stock from Treasury or common stock from 
shareholders as we have done four times since 2010, it will only serve to enhance what we do; it will 
not change what we do or our reason for being.   
 
We are excited about what the future holds for our Bank and we recognize that as we approach $1 
billion in total assets, we must prepare our staff and systems to meet the enhanced expectations of a 
larger financial institution.  We have already begun this process and have identified key individuals 
who will be instrumental in the next phase of our growth.  These candidates are excited by the 
opportunity that our Bank provides and want to be part of it.  Coincidentally, you will see in the proxy 
that our current Equity Plan is expiring and we are recommending that shareholders approve its 
replacement.  Equity is an important component to attract and align employee incentives with 
shareholder objectives and we urge your support.  We also recall that in last year’s shareholder letter 
we committed to the principal of managing our capital efficiently.  We began that process by initiating 
a dividend, the first in our Bank’s history, and we expect to continue that policy as long as earnings 
allow.  Similarly, subject to adequate earnings we also intend to manage shares outstanding to offset 
any new share issuances that occur via equity compensation.    
 
In closing, we hope that you are proud of your Bank and as excited about our future as we are.  We 
appreciate your continued support.   
 
Sincerely, 
 

 
William S. Keller      William E. Purcell 
President & CEO       Chairman of the Board 



 

 
 

Report of Independent Auditors
and Consolidated Financial Statements

Bay Community Bancorp
and Subsidiary

December 31, 2021 and 2020



 

Table of Contents 

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS 2 

 

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 
Consolidated balance sheets 5 
 
Consolidated statements of income 6 
 
Consolidated statements of comprehensive income 7 
 
Consolidated statements of changes in shareholders’ equity 8 
 
Consolidated statements of cash flows 9 
 
Notes to consolidated financial statements 11 

 

 



 

 
 

Report of Independent Auditors  

The Board of Directors and Shareholders 
Bay Community Bancorp 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 
 

Opinion 
We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Bay Community Bancorp and Subsidiary 
(the “Company”), which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2021, and 
2020, and the related consolidated statements of income, comprehensive income, changes in 
shareholders’ equity, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the 
consolidated financial statements. 

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material 
respects, the financial position of Bay Community Bancorp and Subsidiary as of December 31, 2021, 
and 2020, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for the years then ended in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America (GAAS). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are 
required to be independent of Bay Community Bancorp and Subsidiary and to meet our other ethical 
responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audits. We 
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion. 

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial 
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America, and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the 
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are 
conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Bay Community 
Bancorp and Subsidiary’s ability to continue as a going concern within one year after the date that the 
financial statements are available to be issued. 



 

 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial 
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to 
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance 
but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance 
with GAAS will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a 
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may 
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal 
control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or 
in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the 
consolidated financial statements.  

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, we: 

 Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to 
fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such 
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures 
in the financial statements. 

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of Bay Community Bancorp and Subsidiary ’s internal control. 
Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the 
financial statements. 

 Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, 
that raise substantial doubt about Bay Community Bancorp and Subsidiary ’s ability to continue 
as a going concern for a reasonable period of time. 

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other 
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal 
control–related matters that we identified during the audit. 

 

San Francisco, California 
March 28, 2022 
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Consolidated Balance Sheets 
December 31, 2021 and 2020 
 

2021 2020

Cash and due from banks 79,281,401$       84,139,268$       
Federal funds sold 2,661,130            2,491,556            

Total cash and cash equivalents 81,942,531         86,630,824         

Interest-bearing deposits in banks 11,159,738         11,845,497         
Investment securities available-for-sale 53,010,204         24,777,599         
Investment securities held-to-maturity 18,000,000         9,000,000            
Loans, less allowance for loan losses of $6,280,728

in 2021 and $5,697,787 in 2020 533,520,674       484,092,200       
Premises and equipment, net 1,292,240            1,771,875            
Bank-owned life insurance 7,579,123            7,337,224            
Interest receivable and other assets 9,049,783            8,578,678            

Total assets 715,554,293$     634,033,897$     

Deposits
Non-interest bearing 237,541,424$     206,031,544$     
Interest bearing 372,692,952       325,220,218       
Total deposits 610,234,376       531,251,762       

Interest payable and other liabilities 3,786,464            3,535,048            
Other borrowings 33,500,000         37,500,000         

Total liabilities 647,520,840       572,286,810       

Commitments and contingencies (Note 13)

Shareholders' equity
Class A common stock, voting, no par value; 20,000,000

shares authorized; 8,814,208 and 8,729,986 shares
issued and outstanding in 2021 and 2020, respectively 50,346,572         49,755,931         

Class B common stock, non-voting, no par value;
10,000,000 shares authorized; 56,844 shares issued
and outstanding in 2021 and 2020 1,421,100            1,421,100            

Retained earnings 16,530,590         10,176,200         
Accumulated other comprehensive (loss) income, net of taxes (264,809)             393,856               

Total shareholders’ equity 68,033,453         61,747,087         

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity 715,554,293$     634,033,897$     

ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
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Consolidated Statements of Income 
Years Ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 

 
2021 2020

INTEREST INCOME
Interest and fees on loans 24,971,589$       22,458,595$       
Interest on investment securities 1,114,327            566,737               
Interest on federal funds sold 2,604                    2,062                    
Interest on deposits in banks 241,099               322,536               

Total interest income 26,329,619         23,349,930         
INTEREST EXPENSE

Interest expense on deposits 1,180,336            2,544,594            
Interest on borrowings 594,808               701,158               

Total interest expense 1,775,144            3,245,752            
Net interest income  24,554,475         20,104,178         

PROVISION FOR LOAN LOSSES 850,000               1,600,000            
Net interest income after provision for loan losses 23,704,475         18,504,178         

NON-INTEREST INCOME
Service charges 161,400               191,423               
Government grant 1,826,265            202,898               
Gain on sale of loans, net -                             317,806               
Other income 623,859               426,580               

Total non-interest income 2,611,524            1,138,707            
NON-INTEREST EXPENSE

Salaries and employee benefits 9,545,295            7,261,254            
Stock option expense 417,009               357,036               
Occupancy and equipment 1,236,427            1,167,195            
Other expenses 4,572,055            3,808,057            

Total non-interest expense 15,770,786         12,593,542         
Net operating income before provision for 

income taxes 10,545,213         7,049,343            
INCOME TAX EXPENSE 3,131,803            2,161,864            

NET INCOME 7,413,410$         4,887,479$         

NET INCOME PER SHARE -- BASIC 0.84$                    0.56$                    

NET INCOME PER SHARE -- DILUTED 0.82$                    0.55$                    
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Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income 
Years Ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 
 

2021 2020

NET INCOME 7,413,410$         4,887,479$         

CHANGE IN UNREALIZED GAINS AND LOSSES 
ON SECURITIES AVAILABLE FOR SALE (935,121)             413,803               

INCOME TAX BENEFIT (EXPENSE) 276,456               (122,051)             

TOTAL OTHER COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS) INCOME,
NET OF TAX (658,665)             291,752               

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 6,754,745$         5,179,231$         

 
 
 



Ba
y 

Co
m

m
un

it
y 

Ba
nc

or
p 

an
d 

Su
bs

id
ia

ry
 

Co
ns

ol
id

at
ed

 S
ta

te
m

en
t o

f C
ha

ng
es

 in
 S

ha
re

ho
ld

er
s’

 E
qu

it
y 

Ye
ar

s 
En

de
d 

D
ec

em
be

r 
31

, 2
02

1 
an

d 
20

20
 

Se
e 

ac
co

m
pa

ny
in

g 
no

te
s 

an
d 

re
po

rt 
of

 in
de

pe
nd

en
t a

ud
ito

rs
. 

8 

 
Ac

cu
m

ul
at

ed
 O

th
er

To
ta

l
Re

ta
in

ed
Co

m
pr

eh
en

si
ve

Sh
ar

eh
ol

de
rs

’
Sh

ar
es

Am
ou

nt
Sh

ar
es

Am
ou

nt
Ea

rn
in

gs
In

co
m

e 
/ 

(L
os

s)
Eq

ui
ty

BA
LA

N
CE

S,
 Ja

nu
ar

y 
1,

 2
02

0
8,

65
7,

59
4

   
  

49
,2

54
,9

14
$ 

   
 

56
,8

44
   

   
   

 
1,

42
1,

10
0

$ 
   

 
5,

28
8,

72
1

$ 
   

   
   

  
10

2,
10

4
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
56

,0
66

,8
39

$ 
   

 

St
oc

k 
op

tio
n 

ex
er

ci
se

d
72

,3
92

   
   

   
 

14
3,

98
1

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

14
3,

98
1

   
   

   
   

 

St
oc

k 
op

tio
n 

ex
pe

ns
e 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
35

7,
03

6
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
35

7,
03

6
   

   
   

   
 

N
et

 in
co

m
e

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

4,
88

7,
47

9
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

4,
88

7,
47

9
   

   
   

O
th

er
 c

om
pr

eh
en

si
ve

 in
co

m
e,

 n
et

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

29
1,

75
2

   
   

   
   

   
  

29
1,

75
2

   
   

   
   

 

BA
LA

N
CE

S,
 D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

02
0

8,
72

9,
98

6
   

  
49

,7
55

,9
31

   
   

 
56

,8
44

   
   

   
 

1,
42

1,
10

0
   

   
 

10
,1

76
,2

00
   

   
   

   
39

3,
85

6
   

   
   

   
   

  
61

,7
47

,0
87

   
   

 

St
oc

k 
op

tio
n 

ex
er

ci
se

d
84

,2
22

   
   

   
 

17
3,

63
2

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

17
3,

63
2

   
   

   
   

 

St
oc

k 
op

tio
n 

ex
pe

ns
e 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
41

7,
00

9
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
41

7,
00

9
   

   
   

   
 

D
iv

id
en

ds
 p

ai
d 

on
 c

om
m

on
 s

to
ck

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

(1
,0

59
,0

20
)

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

(1
,0

59
,0

20
)

   
   

  

N
et

 in
co

m
e

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

7,
41

3,
41

0
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

7,
41

3,
41

0
   

   
   

O
th

er
 c

om
pr

eh
en

si
ve

 in
co

m
e,

 n
et

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

(6
58

,6
65

)
   

   
   

   
   

 
(6

58
,6

65
)

   
   

   
  

BA
LA

N
CE

S,
 D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

02
1

8,
81

4,
20

8
   

  
50

,3
46

,5
72

$ 
   

 
56

,8
44

   
   

   
 

1,
42

1,
10

0
$ 

   
 

16
,5

30
,5

90
$ 

   
   

  
(2

64
,8

09
)

$ 
   

   
   

   
68

,0
33

,4
53

$ 
   

 

Co
m

m
on

 S
to

ck
Co

m
m

on
 S

to
ck

Cl
as

s 
A

Cl
as

s 
B



Bay Community Bancorp and Subsidiary 
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 
Years Ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 
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2021 2020
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net income 7,413,410$        4,887,479$        
Adjustments to reconcile net income to

net cash from operating activities:
Provision for loan losses 850,000              1,600,000           
Change in deferred loan origination fees, net 439,797              972,265              
Depreciation and amortization 467,981              324,627              
Net amortization of premiums and discounts

on investments available-for-sale 259,027              141,312              
Gain on sale of loans, net -                       317,806              
Stock option expense 417,009              357,036              
Increase in cash surrender value of 

bank owned life insurance (241,899)            (120,005)            
Change in interest receivable and other assets 83,997                (562,394)            
Change in interest payable and other liabilities 251,416              (455,576)            

Net cash provided by operating activities 9,940,738           7,462,550           

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from principal repayments from 

available-for-sale investment securities 6,339,304           6,364,530           
Purchases of available-for-sale investment securities (35,766,057)       (15,141,532)       
Purchases of held-to-maturity securities (9,000,000)         (9,000,000)         
Purchases of bank-owned life insurance -                       (2,845,292)         
Purchase of FHLB stock (370,300)            (206,800)            
Decrease in interest-bearing deposits in banks 685,759              212,205              
Proceeds from sale of loans -                       12,164,062        
Net increase in originated loans (50,718,271)       (100,857,706)    
Purchases of premises and equipment (39,072)               (268,517)            
Proceeds from tenant improvement allowance 142,380              -                            
Abandonment of leasehold improvements -                            (351,460)            

Net cash used in investing activities (88,726,257)       (109,930,510)    
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CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Net increase in demand, interest bearing,

and savings deposits 116,750,053      97,666,256        
Net (decrease) increase in time deposits (37,767,439)       34,338,377        
Net (decrease) increase in other borrowings (4,000,000)         3,000,000           
Dividends paid on common stock (1,059,020)         -                            
Proceeds from exercise of stock options 173,632              143,981              

Net cash provided by financing activities 74,097,226        135,148,614      

NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (4,688,293)         32,680,654        

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, beginning of year 86,630,824        53,950,170        

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, end of year 81,942,531$      86,630,824$      

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION:

Cash paid during the year for:
Interest expense 1,215,958$        2,548,004$        
Income taxes 3,850,000$        2,080,000$        

Non-cash investing and financing activities:
Change in unrealized gains / losses on available-for-sale securities 935,121$            (413,803)$          
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NOTE 1 – ORGANIZATION AND NATURE OF BUSINESS 
 
Bay Community Bancorp (the Company) was incorporated in the State of California and began 
operations on December 7, 2020.  The Company is the parent corporation and sole shareholder of its 
Subsidiary, Community Bank of the Bay (the Bank).  The Bank is a California state chartered bank 
that commenced banking operations on July 22, 1996.  The Bank provides a range of banking services 
to individuals and businesses in the greater San Francisco Bay area, especially businesses employing 
residents of low and moderate income neighborhoods.  The Bank’s primary source of revenue is 
generated from providing loans to customers who are predominately small and middle market 
businesses and individuals residing in the surrounding areas. 
 
 
NOTE 2 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
The accounting and reporting policies of the Company conform to accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America and prevailing practices within the banking industry.  A 
summary of the significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of the accompanying 
consolidated financial statements is as follows: 
 
Consolidation 
 
The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Bay Community Bancorp and its wholly 
owned subsidiary, Community Bank of the Bay. Intercompany accounts and transactions have been 
eliminated in consolidation. 
 
Use of Estimates 
 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles 
requires management to make estimates and assumptions.  These estimates and assumptions affect 
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements and 
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.  Actual results could differ 
from those estimates. 
 
The allowance for loan losses is the most significant accounting estimate reflected in the Company’s 
consolidated financial statements.  The allowance for loan losses includes charges to reduce the 
recorded balances of loans receivable to their estimated net realizable value, as appropriate.  The 
allowance is based on estimates, and ultimate losses may vary from current estimates.  These 
estimates for losses are based on individual assets and their related cash flow forecasts, sales values, 
independent appraisals, the volatility of certain real estate markets, and concern for disposing of real 
estate in distressed markets.  Although management of the Company believes the estimates 
underlying the calculation of specific allowances are reasonable, there can be no assurances that the 
Company could ultimately realize these values.  In addition to providing valuation allowances on 
specific assets where a decline in value of the collateral has been identified, the Company establishes 
general valuation allowances for losses based on the overall portfolio composition, general market 
conditions, concentrations, and prior loss experience. 
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NOTE 2 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 
Other significant management judgments and accounting estimates reflected in the Company’s 
financial statements include: 
 

 Decisions regarding the timing and placement of loans on non-accrual; 
 Determination, recognition, and measurement of impaired loans;  
 Determination and evaluation of deferred tax assets and liabilities; 
 Determination of the fair value of stock option awards; and 
 Determination of the fair value of financial instruments. 

 
Concentrations of Credit Risk 
 
Assets that subject the Company to concentrations of credit risk consist of loans, bank subordinated 
debt, and deposits in banks.  Most of the Company’s customers are located within Alameda and 
Contra Costa counties and the surrounding areas.  The Company’s primary lending products are 
discussed in Note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.  The Company did not have any 
significant concentrations in its business with any one customer or industry.  The Company obtains 
what it believes to be sufficient collateral to secure potential losses on loans.  The extent and value of 
collateral varies and are based upon the details underlying each loan agreement. 
 
As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Company had cash deposits at other financial institutions in 
excess of FDIC insured limits.  However, as the Company places these deposits with major financial 
institutions and monitors the financial condition of these institutions, management believes the risk 
of loss to be minimal. 
 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 
 
For purposes of the statements of cash flows, the Company considers cash, due from banks, federal 
funds sold, and securities purchased under agreements to resell to be cash equivalents.  All have 
original maturities of three months or less. 
 
Interest-Bearing Deposits in Banks 
 
Interest-bearing deposits in banks includes money market accounts and time deposits with original 
maturities greater than ninety days.  These deposits are carried at cost, which approximates fair 
value. 
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NOTE 2 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 
Available-for-Sale Investment Securities 
 
Available-for-sale securities are reported at fair value, with unrealized gains and losses excluded 
from earnings and reported, net of taxes, as accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) within 
shareholders’ equity.  Management determines the appropriate classification of its investment 
securities at the time of purchase and may only change the classification in certain limited 
circumstances.   
 
Gains and losses on the sale of investment securities are computed using the specific identification 
method.  Interest earned on investment securities is reported in interest income, net of applicable 
adjustments for accretion of discounts and amortization of premiums. 
 
Investments with fair values that are less than amortized cost are considered impaired.  Impairment 
may result from either a decline in the financial condition of the issuing entity or, in the case of fixed 
interest rate investments, from rising interest rates.  At each consolidated financial statement date, 
management assesses each investment to determine if impaired investments are temporarily 
impaired or if the impairment is other than temporary.  This assessment includes a determination of 
whether the Company intends to sell the security, or if it is more likely than not that the Company 
will be required to sell the security before recovery of its amortized cost basis less any current-period 
credit losses.  
 
For debt securities that are considered other than temporarily impaired and that the Company does 
not intend to sell and will not be required to sell prior to recovery of the amortized cost basis, the 
amount of impairment is separated into the amount that is credit related (credit loss component) 
and the amount due to all other factors.  The credit loss component is recognized in earnings and is 
calculated as the difference between the security’s amortized cost basis and the present value of its 
expected future cash flows.  The remaining difference between the security’s fair value and the 
present value of the future expected cash flows is deemed to be due to factors that are not credit 
related and is recognized in other comprehensive income (loss). 
 
Held-to-Maturity Investment Securities 
 
Securities are classified as held-to-maturity if the Company has both the intent and ability to hold 
those securities to maturity regardless of changes in market conditions, liquidity needs, or changes 
in general economic conditions.  These securities are carried at cost adjusted for amortization of 
premium and accretion of discount, computed by the effective interest method over their contractual 
lives.   
 
Covenants in the purchase agreements of some of the securities classified as held-to-maturity 
generally restrict the Company’s ability to sell or assign its interest without the consent of the issuer.  
Management periodically assesses each held-to-maturity debt issue to determine if it is impaired due 
to a decline in the financial condition of the issuing entity.  For issues that are determined to be 
impaired, the Company will recognize a loss in earnings.  An impairment loss is calculated as the 
difference between the issue’s cost basis and the present value of its expected future cash flows. 
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NOTE 2 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 
Investment in Federal Home Loan Company Stock 
 
In order to borrow from the Federal Home Loan Company (FHLB), the Bank is required to maintain 
an investment in FHLB capital stock.  The investment of $2,292,700 and $1,922,400 at December 31, 
2021 and 2020, respectively, is carried at cost, redeemable at par, at the discretion of the FHLB, and 
included in interest receivable and other assets on the consolidated balance sheets.  FHLB stock is 
periodically evaluated for impairment based on ultimate recovery of par value. 
 
Loans and Loan Fees 
 
Loans are reported at their principal outstanding balance net of charge-offs.  Loan origination fees 
and certain direct loan origination costs are deferred and the net amounts are amortized to interest 
income by a method that approximates a level yield over the contractual life of the underlying loans. 
 
Income Recognition on Loans 
 
Interest on loans, other than discounted installment loans, is credited to income based on the 
principal amount outstanding on a daily basis.  Interest on discounted installment loans is recognized 
by a method which approximates the effective interest method.  Interest accruals are discontinued 
on certain loans when collection of principal or interest is considered doubtful, or when a loan 
becomes contractually past due by 90 days or more with respect to interest or principal.  When a loan 
is placed on non-accrual status, all interest previously accrued but not collected is reversed against 
current period interest income.  Income on such loans is then recognized only to the extent that cash 
is received and where the future collection of principal is probable.  Interest accruals are resumed on 
such loans when, in the judgment of management, the loans are estimated to be fully collectible as to 
both principal and interest. 
 
Allowance for Loan Losses 
 
The allowance for loan losses is established through a provision for loan losses charged to operations.  
The adequacy of the allowance for loan losses is periodically evaluated by the Company in order to 
maintain the allowance at a level that, in the opinion of management, is adequate to absorb losses 
inherent in existing loans.  Management’s evaluation of the adequacy of the allowance is based on a 
consideration of the Company’s historical loss experience, known and inherent risks in the loan 
portfolio, including adverse circumstances that may affect the ability of the borrower to repay 
interest and/or principal, the estimated value of any underlying collateral, and an analysis of the 
levels and trends of delinquencies and charge-offs.  Actual results could differ from those estimates. 
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NOTE 2 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 
When a loan or portion of a loan is determined to be uncollectible, the portion deemed uncollectible 
is charged against the allowance and subsequent recoveries, if any, are credited to the allowance. 
The allowance consists of specific, general, and unallocated components.  The specific component 
relates to loans that are classified as impaired.  Impaired loans, as defined, are measured based on 
the present value of expected future cash flows discounted at the loan’s effective interest rate or the 
fair value of the collateral, if the loan is collateral dependent.  The general component relates to non-
impaired loans and is based on historical loss experience adjusted for qualitative factors.  An 
unallocated component may be maintained to cover uncertainties that could affect management’s 
estimate of probable losses.  The unallocated component of the allowance reflects the margin of 
imprecision inherent in the underlying assumptions used in the methodologies for estimating 
specific and general losses in the portfolio. 
 
A loan is considered impaired if, based on current information and events, it is probable that the 
Company will be unable to collect the scheduled payments of principal or interest when due, 
according to the contractual terms of the loan agreement.  
 
Troubled Debt Restructuring 
 
In situations where, for economic or legal reasons related to a borrower’s financial difficulties, the 
Company grants a concession to the borrower that it would not otherwise consider, the related loan 
is classified as a troubled debt restructuring.  The Company measures any loss on the troubled debt 
restructuring in accordance with the guidance concerning impaired loans set forth above.  
Additionally, loans modified in troubled debt restructurings are generally placed on non-accrual 
status at the time of restructuring.  These loans are returned to accrual status after the borrower 
demonstrates performance with the modified terms for a sustained period of time (generally six 
months) and has the capacity to continue to perform in accordance with the modified terms of the 
restructured debt. 
 
Certain payment deferrals may be granted under the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security 
Act of 2020 (“CARES Act”) and related interagency guidance in response to financial difficulties 
caused by the COVID-19 pandemic.  Such deferrals are not considered concessions that would lead 
to classification as a troubled debt restructuring.  Any loan modified per the CARES Act is separately 
monitored, and any request for continuation of relief beyond the initial modification will be evaluated 
to determine if the loan should be reclassified as a troubled debt restructuring at that time.  The 
COVID deferral relief period under the CARES Act ended effective January 1, 2022. 
 
Loans Held for Sale 
 
The Company has originated government guarantied loans to customers under the Small Business 
Administration (SBA) program.  The SBA provides guaranties of 75% to 90% of each loan.  For some 
of these loans, the Company sells the guarantied portion of the loan to a third party and retains the 
unguarantied portion in its own portfolio.  Loans held for sale include government loans and are 
reported at the lower of cost or fair value.  Fair value is based on what secondary markets are 
currently offering for portfolios with similar characteristics.   
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NOTE 2 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 
Gains or losses on the sale of loans that are held for sale are recognized at the time of the sale, subject 
to the expiration of any warranty or recourse provisions, and determined by the difference between 
net sale proceeds and the net book value of the loans less the estimated fair value of any retained 
mortgage servicing rights and estimated discount recognized against the retained portion of the loan. 
 
Servicing Assets 
 
Periodically, the Company sells loans and retains the servicing rights.  The gain or loss on sale of loans 
depends in part on the previous carrying amount of the financial assets involved in the transfer, 
allocated between the assets sold and the retained interests based on their relative fair value at the 
date of transfer.  To obtain fair values, quoted market prices are used, if available.  However, quotes 
are generally not available for retained interests, so the Company generally estimates fair value based 
on the present value of future expected cash flows using management’s best estimates of the key 
assumptions – credit losses, prepayment speeds, forward yield curves, and discount rates 
commensurate with the risks involved. 
 
The Company measures servicing assets initially at fair value and amortizes the servicing rights in 
proportion to, and over the period of, estimated net servicing revenues.  Management assesses 
servicing rights for impairment as of each financial reporting date.  Fair value adjustments that 
encompass market-driven valuation changes and the runoff in value that occurs from the passage of 
time are each separately reported.  Total servicing assets included in other assets were $175,611 and 
$267,265 at December 31, 2021and 2020, respectively.  The Company evaluated the servicing asset 
for impairment at December 31, 2021 and 2020 and determined that no valuation allowance was 
needed. 
 
The Company services loans that have been participated with other financial institutions totaling 
$12,727,073 and $17,302,730 as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.  Control over these 
loans was surrendered without recourse and, therefore, the sold balances are not included on the 
Company’s consolidated balance sheets. 
 
Transfers of Financial Assets 
 
Transfers of financial assets are accounted for as sales when control over the assets has been 
surrendered.  Control over transferred assets is deemed to be surrendered when: (1) the assets have 
been isolated from the Company, (2) the transferee obtains the rights (free of conditions that prevent 
it from taking advantage of that right, beyond a more than trivial benefit to the transferor) to pledge 
or exchange the transferred assets, and (3) the Company does not maintain effective control over the 
transferred assets through an agreement to repurchase them before their maturity. 
 
The Company sells certain portions of government guarantied loans in the secondary market.  These 
sales are recorded by the Company when control is surrendered and any warranty period or recourse 
provision expires.  There were no warranty or recourse provisions outstanding at December 31, 2021 
for loans previously sold.  
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NOTE 2 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 
Premises and Equipment 
 
Premises and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and amortization.  
Depreciation and amortization are provided for in amounts sufficient to relate the cost of depreciable 
assets to operations over their estimated service lives using the straight-line basis.  The estimated 
lives used in determining depreciation are: 
 

Leasehold improvements 5 years 
Furniture, fixtures, and equipment 3 – 7 years 

 
Leasehold improvements are amortized over the lesser of the useful life of the asset or the term of 
the lease.  The straight-line method of depreciation is followed for all assets for financial reporting 
purposes, but accelerated methods are used for tax purposes.  Deferred income taxes have been 
provided for the resulting temporary differences. 
 
Leases 
 
The Company enters into leases in the normal course of business, primarily related to office space 
and Company branches.  The Company’s leases have remaining terms ranging from three to six years, 
some of which include renewal options to extend the lease for up to five years.  The Company’s leases 
do not include residual value guarantees or covenants. The Company includes lease extension and 
termination options in the lease term if, after considering relevant economic factors, it is reasonably 
certain the Company will exercise the option.  In addition, the Company has elected to account for 
any non-lease components in its real estate leases as part of the associated lease component.  The 
Company has also elected not to recognize leases with original lease terms of 12 months or less 
(short-term leases) on the Company’s consolidated balance sheet.  
 
Leases are classified as operating or finance leases at the lease commencement date.  Lease expense 
for operating leases and short-term leases is recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease term.  
Right-of-use assets represent our right to use an underlying asset for the lease term and lease 
liabilities represent our obligation to make lease payments arising from the lease.  Right-of-use assets 
and lease liabilities are recognized at the lease commencement date based on the estimated present 
value of lease payments over the lease term.  The Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at 
lease commencement to calculate the present value of lease payments when the rate implicit in a 
lease is not known.  The Company’s incremental borrowing rate is based on the FHLB amortizing 
advance rate, adjusted for the lease term and other factors for similar assets and credit quality. 
 
Bank-Owned Life Insurance 
 
The Bank has purchased insurance on the lives of Bank executives.  The policies accumulate asset 
values to meet future liabilities including payment of employee benefits such as split dollar life 
insurance agreements, which provide an insurance benefit to the family of the individual on whom 
the policy is held.  The cash surrender value of policies is recorded as an asset on the consolidated 
balance sheets.  Increases in the cash surrender value are recorded as other non-interest income in 
the consolidated statements of income. 
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NOTE 2 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 
Income Taxes 
 
The Company uses the asset and liability method to account for income taxes.  Under such method, 
deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences of differences 
between financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective 
tax basis (temporary differences).  Deferred tax assets and liabilities are reflected at currently 
enacted income tax rates applicable to the year in which the deferred tax assets or liabilities are 
expected to be realized or settled.  As changes in tax laws or rates are enacted, deferred tax assets 
and liabilities are adjusted through the provision for income taxes in the year of enactment. 
 
A valuation allowance is established to the extent that it is more likely than not that the benefits 
associated with the deferred tax assets will not be fully realized. 
 
The Company had no unrecognized tax benefits at December 31, 2021 and 2020. 
 
The Company recognizes interest accrued and penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits in tax 
expense.  During the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Company recognized no interest 
and penalties. 
 
With few exceptions, the Company is no longer subject to examinations by U.S. federal taxing 
authorities for years ended before December 31, 2018, and by state authorities for years ended 
before December 31, 2017. 
 
Comprehensive Income 
 
Comprehensive income includes net income and other comprehensive income (loss).  The Company’s 
primary source of comprehensive income (loss) is unrealized gains and losses on securities available 
for sale.  Reclassification adjustments result from gains or losses on securities that are realized and 
included in net income of the current period that also had been included in other comprehensive 
income as unrealized holding gains or losses in the period in which they arose.  Total comprehensive 
income and the components of accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) are presented in the 
consolidated statements of comprehensive income. 
 
Stock-Based Compensation 
 
The Company recognizes compensation expense for awards of stock options to employees and 
directors based on the grant-date fair value of those awards.  The fair value of each option granted is 
estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes options-pricing model.  The assumptions used 
in this model include an estimate of expected volatility, which is based on the historical volatility of 
the price of similar Company stocks, and an estimate of the expected option term, which is based on 
consideration of the vesting period and contractual term of the option.  In addition, the Company 
estimates the number of options expected to be forfeited based on historical forfeiture rates.  The 
risk-free interest rates are equal to the U.S. Treasury yield at the time of the grant and commensurate 
with the expected term of the grant.  Expense is recognized over the vesting period of the options.  
The Company’s stock compensation plan and related assumptions used in determining the fair value 
of awards are discussed in Note 19. 
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NOTE 2 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 
Advertising Costs 
 
The Company expenses advertising costs as they are incurred.  Advertising expense was $226,958 
and $223,575 for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively. 
 
Net Income per Share 
 
Basic net income per share amounts are computed by dividing net income by the weighted average 
number of common shares outstanding during the year.  Diluted earnings per share reflects the 
potential dilution that could occur if securities or other contracts to issue common stock, such as 
stock options, result in the issuance of common stock which share in the earnings of the Company.  
The treasury stock method is applied to determine the dilutive effect of stock options when 
computing diluted earnings per share.  However, dilutive earnings per share amounts are not 
presented when a net loss occurs because the conversion of potential common stock is anti-dilutive. 
 
Revenue Recognition 
  
Service charges on deposit accounts  
 
The Company earns fees from its deposit customers for account maintenance, transaction-based 
activity, and overdraft services.  Account maintenance fees consist primarily of account fees and 
analyzed account fees charged on deposit accounts on a monthly basis.  The performance obligation 
is satisfied and the fees are recognized on a monthly basis as the service period is completed.  
Transaction-based fees on deposit accounts are charged to deposit customers for specific services 
provided to the customer, such as non-sufficient funds fees, overdraft fees, and wire fees.  The 
performance obligation is completed as the transaction occurs and the fees are recognized at the time 
each specific service is provided to the customer.  
 
Debit and ATM interchange fee income, net  
 
Debit and ATM interchange income represent fees earned when a debit card issued by the Company 
is used.  The Company earns interchange fees from debit cardholder transactions through the Visa 
payment network.  Interchange fees from cardholder transactions represent a percentage of the 
underlying transaction value and are recognized daily, concurrently with the transaction processing 
services provided to the cardholder.  The performance obligation is satisfied, and the fees are earned 
when the cost of the transaction is charged to the cardholders’ debit card.  Certain expenses directly 
associated with the credit and debit card are recorded on a net basis with the interchange income.   
 
Merchant fee income  
 
Merchant fee income represents fees earned by the Company for card payment services provided to 
its merchant customers.  The Company has a contract with a third party to provide card payment 
services to merchants that contract for those services.  The third-party provider passes the payments 
made by the merchants through to the Company.  The Company, in turn, pays the third-party provider 
for the services it provides to the merchants. 
 
  



Bay Community Bancorp and Subsidiary 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

 
 

 20 

NOTE 2 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 
Fair Value of Financial Instruments 
 
The Company utilizes fair value measurements to record fair value adjustments to certain assets and 
liabilities and to determine fair value disclosures. The Company groups assets and liabilities at fair 
value in a three-level valuation hierarchy for disclosure of fair value measurement. The valuation 
hierarchy is based on the transparency of inputs to the valuation of an asset or liability as of the 
measurement date. 
 
In general, fair values determined by Level 1 inputs utilize quoted prices (unadjusted) in active 
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Company has the ability to access. Fair values 
determined by Level 2 inputs utilize inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are 
observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly. Level 2 inputs include quoted prices 
for similar assets and liabilities in active markets, and inputs other than quoted prices that are 
observable for the asset or liability, such as interest rates and yield curves that are observable at 
commonly quoted intervals. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability, and 
include situations where there is little, if any, market activity for the asset or liability. 
 
In certain cases, the inputs used to measure fair value may fall into different levels of the fair value 
hierarchy. In such cases, the level in the fair value hierarchy within which the fair value measurement 
in its entirety falls has been determined based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair 
value measurement in its entirety. The Company’s assessment of the significance of a particular input 
to the fair value measurement in its entirety requires judgment, and considers factors specific to the 
asset or liability. Some fair value measurements, such as available-for-sale securities, are performed 
on a recurring basis, while others such as other real estate owned and impaired loans are performed 
on a non-recurring basis. 
 
Recent Accounting Pronouncements and Adoption of New Accounting Standards 
 
In June 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-13, Financial Instruments – Credit Losses (Topic 326): 
Measurement of Credit Losses on Financial Instruments.  The ASU will require the earlier recognition 
of credit losses on loans and other financial instruments based on an expected loss model, replacing 
the incurred loss model that is currently in use.  Under the new guidance, an entity will measure all 
expected credit losses for financial instruments held at the reporting date based on historical 
experience, current conditions, and reasonable and supportable forecasts.  The expected loss model 
will apply to loans and leases, unfunded lending commitments, held-to-maturity debt securities and 
other debt instruments measured at amortized cost.  The impairment model for available-for-sale 
debt securities will require the recognition of credit losses through a valuation allowance when fair 
value is less than amortized cost, regardless of whether the impairment is considered to be other-
than-temporary.  The FASB has deferred the effective date of this ASU to fiscal years beginning on or 
after December 15, 2022, including interim periods within those fiscal years for public business 
entities.  The Company is currently evaluating the impact of this ASU on the consolidated financial 
statements. 
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NOTE 2 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 
In March, 2020, the FASB issued ASU No. 2020-04, Reference Rate Reform (Topic 848).  The 
amendments in this ASU are elective and provide optional guidance for a limited period of time to 
ease the potential burden in accounting for (or recognizing the effects of) reference rate reform.  The 
amendments in this ASU provide optional expedients and exceptions for applying generally accepted 
accounting principles (GAAP) to contracts, hedging relationships, and other transactions that 
reference LIBOR or another reference rate expected to be discontinued because of reference rate 
reform.  The amendments in this ASU may be elected as of March 12, 2020 through December 31, 
2022.  An entity may choose to elect the amendments in this update at an interim period subsequent 
to March 12, 2020 with adoption methods varying based on transaction type.  The Company has not 
elected to apply these amendments; however, the Company will assess the applicability of the ASU to 
us and continue to monitor guidance for reference rate reform from FASB and its impact on our 
financial condition and results of operations. 
 
Reclassification and Presentation 
 
Certain balances in the 2020 presentation have been reclassified to conform to the 2021 
presentation.  Reclassifications had no impact on net earnings, total assets, total liabilities, or 
shareholders’ equity. 
 
The Company has purchased unsecured subordinated debt issued by various bank holding 
companies.  The subordinated debt was carried at cost on the Company’s balance sheet as an other 
asset in 2020; income was accrued on a monthly basis and recognized in non-interest income.  In 
2021, the Company changed its reporting of subordinated debt to include it with Investment 
Securities.  It is classified as held-to-maturity.  Income is accrued on a monthly basis and is recognized 
as interest on investment securities.  The 2020 presentation of subordinated debt has been 
reclassified to conform to the 2021 presentation.  This reclassification had no impact on net earnings, 
total assets, total liabilities, or shareholders’ equity.  
 
 
NOTE 3 – CASH AND DUE FROM BANKS 
 
Cash and due from Banks includes balances with the Federal Reserve Bank and other correspondent 
banks.  The Federal Reserve Bank generally requires the Company to maintain a certain minimum 
balance at all times.  The reserve requirements are based on a percentage of the Company’s deposit 
liabilities.  The reserve requirement was temporarily suspended by the Federal Reserve in March, 
2020 in response to the COVID-19 pandemic.    
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NOTE 4 – SECURITIES 
 
The following table provides the amortized cost and estimated fair value of by major categories of 
investment securities as of December 31, 2021: 
 

Gross Gross Estimated
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair

Cost Gains Losses Value
Available-for-sale securities:

Mortgage-backed securities 31,344,118$  176,135$        (335,936)$      31,184,317$   
CMOs 12,348,224    59,526            (187,018)        12,220,732     
Municipals - taxable 7,743,380       4,010               (111,150)        7,636,240       
Municipals - exempt 1,950,944       20,858            (2,887)             1,968,915       

Total Available-for-sale securities 53,386,666$  260,529$        (636,991)$      53,010,204$   

Held-to-maturity securities:

Subordinated debt 18,000,000$  95,099$          (100,979)$      17,994,120$   

Total held-to-maturity securities: 18,000,000$  95,099$          (100,979)$      17,994,120$   

 
 
 
The following table provides the amortized cost and estimated fair value of by major categories of 
investment securities as of December 31, 2020: 
 

Gross Gross Estimated
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair

Cost Gains Losses Value
Available-for-sale securities:

Mortgage-backed securities 9,291,735$    312,397$        -$                     9,604,132$     
CMOs 9,692,252       179,538          (7,722)             9,864,068       
Municipals - taxable 3,253,117       31,289            (2,406)             3,282,000       
Municipals - exempt 1,981,836       45,563            -                        2,027,399       

Total Available-for-sale securities 24,218,940$  568,787$        (10,128)$        24,777,599$   

Held-to-maturity securities:

Subordinated debt 9,000,000$    -$                     -$                     9,000,000$     

Total held-to-maturity securities: 9,000,000$    -$                     -$                     9,000,000$     
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NOTE 4 – SECURITIES (CONTINUED) 
 
The Company had no proceeds from the sales of investment securities during the years ended 
December 31, 2021 and 2020.  There were no gross realized gains or losses during 2021 and 2020. 
 
Investment securities with unrealized losses at December 31, 2021 and 2020 are summarized and 
classified according to the duration of the loss period as follows: 
 

Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized
Value Loss Value Loss Value Loss

Available-for-sale securities

Mortgage-backed securities 26,588,737$   (335,936)$    -$                   -$               26,588,737$     (335,936)$    
CMOs 9,078,983       (187,018)      -                     -                 9,078,983          (187,018)      
Municipals - taxable 7,272,231       (111,150)      -                     -                 7,272,231          (111,150)      
Municipals - exempt 424,072           (2,887)           -                     -                 424,072             (2,887)           

 
Total available-for-sale securities 43,364,023$   (636,991)$    -$                   -$               43,364,023$     (636,991)$    

Held-to-maturity securities

Subordinated debt 17,994,120$   (100,979)$    -$                   -$               17,994,120$     (100,979)$    

Total held-to-maturity securities 17,994,120$   (100,979)$    -$                   -$               17,994,120$     (100,979)$    

2021
Less than 12 months 12 months or more Total

 
 

Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized
Value Loss Value Loss Value Loss

Available-for-sale securities

CMOs 3,951,003$     (7,722)$         -$                   -$               3,951,003$        (7,722)$         
Municipals - taxable 724,968           (2,406)           -                     -                 724,968             (2,406)           

Total available-for-sale securities 4,675,971$     (10,128)$      -$                   -$               4,675,971$        (10,128)$      

2020
Less than 12 months 12 months or more Total
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NOTE 4 – SECURITIES (CONTINUED) 
 
Certain investment securities shown above currently have fair values less than amortized cost and, 
therefore, contain unrealized losses.  The Company does not have the intent to sell the investments 
that are temporarily impaired, and it is more likely than not that the Company will not be required 
to sell those investments before recovery of the amortized cost basis.  The Company has evaluated 
these securities and has determined that the decline in value is no other than temporary and is 
related to the change in market interest rates since purchase.  The decline in value is not related to 
any company or industry specific event.  These temporary unrealized losses relate principally to 
current interest rates for similar types of securities.  In analyzing an issuer’s financial condition, 
management considers whether the securities are issued by the federal government or its agencies, 
whether downgrades by bond rating agencies have occurred, and the results of reviews of the issuer’s 
financial condition.  
 
There were thirty-seven and five available-for-sale investment securities with unrealized losses at 
December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.  The Company anticipates full recovery of amortized cost 
with respect to these securities at maturity or sooner in the event of a more favorable market interest 
rate environment. 
 
The amortized cost and estimated fair value of investment securities at December 31, 2021 by 
contractual maturity are shown below.  Expected maturities will differ from contractual maturities 
because the issuers of the securities may have the right to call or prepay obligations with or without 
call or prepayment penalties. 
 
 
Available-for-sale securities Amortized Cost Estimated Fair Value

Due after one year through five years 1,900,266$            1,980,096$            
Due after five years through ten years 12,432,574            12,275,510            
Due after ten years 39,053,826            38,754,598            

53,386,666$         53,010,204$         

Held-to-maturity securities Amortized Cost Estimated Fair Value

Due after five years through ten years 18,000,000$         17,994,120$         

18,000,000$         17,994,120$         
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NOTE 5 – LOANS AND THE ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES 
 
Outstanding loans, by class, are summarized as follows: 

2021 2020
Commercial 170,058,856$    180,024,559$    
Commercial real estate

Non-owner occupied 182,309,827       146,236,454       
Owner occupied 107,822,402       82,797,797         

Construction and land 44,163,874         60,712,631         
Consumer and other 37,708,153         21,840,459         

542,063,112       491,611,900       
Deferred loan fees and costs, net (2,261,710)          (1,821,913)          
Allowance for loan losses (6,280,728)          (5,697,787)          

533,520,674$    484,092,200$    

December 31,

 
The Paycheck Protection Program (“PPP”) was enacted by the Small Business Administration (“SBA”) 
in 2020 under the authorization provided by the CARES Act.  PPP loans are fully-guarantied by the 
SBA, and, if certain conditions are met, are repaid by SBA loan forgiveness.  The Bank had 
$38,631,461 and $66,035,059 of PPP loans outstanding as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, 
respectively.  PPP loans are classified as Commercial loans in the above table and in all subsequent 
tables.  
 
Salaries and employee benefits totaling $1,045,622 and $1,475,282 have been deferred as loan 
origination costs for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively. 
 
The Company has certain lending policies and procedures in place that are designed to maximize 
loan income within an acceptable level of risk.  Management reviews and approves these policies and 
procedures on a regular basis.  A reporting system supplements the review process by providing 
management with frequent reports related to loan production, loan quality, and concentrations of 
credit, loan delinquencies, and non-performing and potential problem loans.  Diversification in the 
loan portfolio is a means of managing risk associated with fluctuations in economic conditions. 
 
Commercial loans are underwritten after evaluating and understanding the borrower’s ability to 
operate profitably and prudently expand its business.  Underwriting standards are designed to 
promote relationship banking rather than transactional banking.  Once it is determined that the 
borrower’s management possesses sound ethics and solid business acumen, the Company’s 
management examines current and projected cash flows to determine the ability of the borrower to 
repay their obligations as agreed.  Commercial loans are primarily made based on the identified cash 
flows of the borrower and secondarily on the underlying collateral provided by the borrower.   
 
The cash flows of borrowers, however, may not be as expected and the collateral securing these loans 
may fluctuate in value.  Most commercial loans are secured by the assets being financed or other 
business assets such as accounts receivable or inventory and may incorporate a personal guarantee; 
however, some short-term loans may be made on an unsecured basis.  In the case of loans secured 
by accounts receivable, the availability of funds for the repayment of these loans may be substantially 
dependent on the ability of the borrower to collect amounts due from its customers. 
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NOTE 5 – LOANS AND THE ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES (CONTINUED) 
 
Commercial real estate loans are subject to underwriting standards and processes similar to 
commercial loans, in addition to those of real estate loans.  These loans are viewed primarily as cash 
flow loans and secondarily as loans secured by real estate.  Commercial real estate lending typically 
involves higher loan principal amounts and the repayment of these loans is generally largely 
dependent on the successful operation of the property securing the loan or the business conducted 
on the property securing the loan.  Commercial real estate loans may be more adversely affected by 
conditions in the real estate markets or in the general economy.  The properties securing the 
Company’s commercial real estate portfolio are diverse in terms of type and geographic location.  
This diversity helps reduce the Company’s exposure to adverse economic events that affect any single 
market or industry.  Management monitors and evaluates commercial real estate loans based on 
collateral, geography, and risk grade criteria.  As a general rule, the Company avoids financing single-
purpose projects unless other underwriting factors are present to help mitigate risk.  The Company 
also utilizes third-party experts to provide insight and guidance about economic conditions and 
trends affecting market areas it serves.  In addition, management tracks the level of owner-occupied 
commercial real estate loans versus non-owner occupied loans. 
 
With respect to loans to developers and builders that are secured by non-owner occupied properties 
that the Company may originate from time to time, the Company generally requires the borrower to 
have had an existing relationship with the Company and have a proven record of success.  
Construction loans are underwritten utilizing feasibility studies, independent appraisal reviews, 
sensitivity analysis of absorption and lease rates, and financial analysis of the developers and 
property owners.  Construction loans are generally based upon estimates of costs and value 
associated with the completed project.  These estimates may be inaccurate.  Construction loans often 
involve the disbursement of substantial funds with repayment substantially dependent on the 
success of the ultimate project.  
 
Sources of repayment for these types of loans may be pre-committed permanent loans from 
approved long-term lenders, sales of developed property, or an interim loan commitment from the 
Company until permanent financing is obtained.  These loans are closely monitored by on-site 
inspections and are considered to have higher risks than other real estate loans due to their ultimate 
repayment being sensitive to interest rate changes, governmental regulation of real property, general 
economic conditions, and the availability of long-term financing. 
 
Consumer loans primarily consist of home equity lines of credit and loans and other personal loans.  
The Company originates consumer loans utilizing credit history information, debt-to-income ratio, 
and loan-to-value ratio analysis.  The Company also evaluates the consumer’s liquid assets and their 
ability to supplement cash flow for debt payment.  To monitor and manage consumer loan risk, 
policies and procedures are developed and modified, as needed.   
 
This activity, coupled with relatively small loan amounts that are spread across many individual 
borrowers, minimizes risk.  Underwriting standards for home equity loans include, but are not 
limited to, a maximum loan-to-value percentage of 80%, collection remedies, the number of such 
loans a borrower can have at one time, and documentation requirements.  Personal loans are nearly 
evenly split between mobile home loans along with a small number of direct auto loans and 
installment loans.  Personal unsecured loans are offered to consumers with additional underwriting 
procedures in place, including net worth and borrower’s verified liquid assets analysis.  In general, 
personal loans usually have a higher degree of risk than other types of loans.  
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NOTE 5 – LOANS AND THE ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES (CONTINUED) 
 
The Company utilizes an independent third party loan review consultant to review and validate the 
credit risk program on a periodic basis.  Results of these reviews are presented to management and 
the Company’s Board of Directors.  The loan review process complements and reinforces the risk 
identification and assessment decisions made by lenders and credit personnel, as well as the 
Company’s policies and procedures. 
 
The following tables summarize the credit quality indicators related to the Company’s loans, by class, 
as of December 31, 2021 and 2020: 
 

Special
Pass Mention Substandard Doubtful Totals

Commercial 166,467,330$  2,470,143$      1,121,383$     -$           170,058,856$  

Commercial real estate
Non-owner occupied 176,658,055     5,651,772         -                   -             182,309,827     
Owner occupied 100,094,037     7,728,365         -                   -             107,822,402     

Construction and land 44,163,874       -                     -                   -             44,163,874       

Consumer and other 37,708,153       -                     -                   -             37,708,153       

Total 525,091,449$  15,850,280$    1,121,383$     -$           542,063,112$  

December 31, 2021

 
 

Special
Pass Mention Substandard Doubtful Totals

Commercial 178,085,657$  314,232$          1,624,670$     -$           180,024,559$  

Commercial real estate
Non-owner occupied 142,898,748     3,337,706         -                   -             146,236,454     
Owner occupied 74,957,912       7,839,885         -                   -             82,797,797       

Construction and land 60,712,631       -                     -                   -             60,712,631       

Consumer and other 21,840,459       -                     -                   -             21,840,459       

Total 478,495,407$  11,491,823$    1,624,670$     -$           491,611,900$  

December 31, 2020

 
 
As a part of the on-going monitoring of the credit quality of the Company’s loan portfolio, 
management monitors certain credit quality indicators including trends related to risk grade 
classifications, concentrations, net charge-offs, non-performing loans, and general economic 
conditions. 
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NOTE 5 – LOANS AND THE ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES (CONTINUED) 
 
The Company uses a risk grading system to assign a risk grade to each of its loans.  Loans are graded 
on a scale of 1 to 9, with grades 1 to 5 being termed pass loans and grades 6, 7, 8, and 9 being termed 
special mention, substandard, doubtful, and loss, respectively.  A description of the general 
characteristics of the nine grades is as follows: 
 
Pass (grades 1-5) – These loans generally conform to the Company’s underwriting criteria and 
evidence an acceptable level of credit risk. 
 
Special Mention (grade 6) – These loans have weaknesses that require management’s close attention.  
These weaknesses expose the Company to a sufficient degree of risk to warrant classification.  If left 
uncorrected, these weaknesses will result in deterioration of the loan’s repayment prospects or the 
borrower’s credit position at a future date.  Loans in this category are currently protected, but are 
potentially weak.  The loans may (particularly in the short term) constitute a greater than average 
credit risk, but do not presently expose the Company to a sufficient degree of risk to warrant adverse 
classification.  This is a temporary classification pending identification of improvement or 
deterioration in the criticized asset. 
 
Substandard (grade 7) – Substandard loans are inadequately protected by the current net worth and 
financial capacity of the borrower or the collateral pledged, if any.  Loans so classified have a well-
defined weakness or weaknesses that jeopardize the liquidation of the debt.  They are characterized 
by the distinct possibility that the Company will sustain some loss if the deficiencies are not 
corrected.  Loss potential, while existing in the aggregate amount of substandard loans, does not have 
to exist in individual loans classified substandard. 
 
Doubtful (grade 8) – Loans classified doubtful have all the weaknesses inherent in those classified as 
substandard with the added characteristic that the weaknesses make collection in full, on the basis 
of currently existing facts, conditions, and values, highly questionable and improbable.  The 
probability of loss is extremely high but because of certain important and reasonably specific pending 
factors which may work to strengthen (or weaken) the loan, its classification as an estimated loss is 
deferred until a more exact status may be determined.  Pending factors that may necessitate a 
doubtful classification include bankruptcy or liquidation procedures, capital injection, or perfecting 
liens on additional collateral refinancing plans.  The Company considers doubtful to be a temporary 
classification and will only classify an asset, or portion of an asset, as such when information is not 
available to conclude as to classification or more clearly define the potential for loss. 
 
Loss (grade 9) – Assets classified loss are considered uncollectible and of such little value that their 
continuance as assets is not warranted.  This classification does not mean that an asset has absolutely 
no recovery or salvage value, but rather that it is not practical or desirable to defer writing off a 
basically worthless asset even though partial recovery may be affected in the future.  Losses are taken 
in the period in which they are identified as uncollectible. 
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NOTE 5 – LOANS AND THE ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES (CONTINUED) 
 
Age Analysis of Past Due Loans 
 
The age analysis of past due loans by class as of December 31, 2021 consisted of the following: 
 

Recorded
Greater Investment >

30-59 Days 60-89 days Than Total Past 90 days and
Past Due Past Due 90 Days Due Current Total Loans Accruing

Commercial -$           -$          26,840$     26,840$        170,032,016$ 170,058,856$  -$             

Commercial real estate
Non-owner occupied -              -             -               -                  182,309,827   182,309,827    -               
Owner occupied -              -             -               -                  107,822,402   107,822,402    -               

Construction and land -              -             -               -                  44,163,874      44,163,874       -               

Consumer and other -              -             -               -                  37,708,153      37,708,153       -               

Total -$           -$          26,840$     26,840$        542,036,272$ 542,063,112$  -$             

 
 
The age analysis of past due loans by class as of December 31, 2020 consisted of the following: 
 

Recorded
Greater Investment >

30-59 Days 60-89 Days Than Total Past 90 Days and
Past Due Past Due 90 Days Due Current Total Loans Accruing

Commercial -$           -$          428,170$   428,170$     179,596,389$ 180,024,559$  -$             

Commercial real estate
Non-owner occupied -              -             -               -                  146,236,454   146,236,454    -               
Owner occupied -              -             -               -                  82,797,797      82,797,797       -               

Construction and land -              -             -               -                  60,712,631      60,712,631       -               

Consumer and other -              -             -               -                  21,840,459      21,840,459       -               

Total -$           -$          428,170$   428,170$     491,183,730$ 491,611,900$  -$             
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NOTE 5 – LOANS AND THE ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES (CONTINUED) 
 
Information related to impaired loans by class as of December 31, 2021 and for the year then ended 
consisted of the following: 

Commercial Commercial
Real Estate Real Estate
Non-Owner Owner Construction Consumer

Commercial Occupied Occupied and Land and other Total

Recorded investment in impaired loans:

With no specific allowance recorded 26,840$      -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    26,840$         
With a specific allowance recorded -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                          

Total recorded investment in impaired loans 26,840$      -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    26,840$         

Unpaid principal balance of impaired loans:

With no specific allowance recorded 53,915$      -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    53,915$         
With a specific allowance recorded -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                          

Total unpaid principal balance of impaired loans 53,915$      -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    53,915$         

Specific allowance -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                       

Average recorded investment in impaired loans during
the year 103,643$   -$                    -$                    -$                    228,846$   332,489$      

Interest income recognized in impaired loans during
the year 27,075$      -$                    -$                    -$                    9,287$         36,362$         

 
 
 
Information related to impaired loans by class as of December 31, 2020 and for the year then ended 
consisted of the following: 

Commercial Commercial
Real Estate Real Estate
Non-Owner Owner Construction Consumer

Commercial Occupied Occupied and Land and other Total

Recorded investment in impaired loans:

With no specific allowance recorded 159,866$   -$                    -$                    -$                    555,736$   715,602$      
With a specific allowance recorded 268,304      -                       -                       -                       -                       268,304         

Total recorded investment in impaired loans 428,170$   -$                    -$                    -$                    555,736$   983,906$      

Unpaid principal balance of impaired loans:

With no specific allowance recorded 263,745$   -$                    -$                    -$                    555,736$   819,481$      
With a specific allowance recorded 268,304      -                       -                       -                       -                       268,304         

Total unpaid principal balance of impaired loans 532,049$   -$                    -$                    -$                    555,736$   1,087,785$  

Specific allowance 268,304$   -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    268,304$      

Average recorded investment in impaired loans during
the year 169,203$   -$                    -$                    -$                    561,167$   730,370$      

Interest income recognized in impaired loans during
the year 103,879$   -$                    -$                    -$                    22,477$      126,356$      
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NOTE 5 – LOANS AND THE ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES (CONTINUED) 
 
Non-accrual loans at December 31, 2021 and 2020 consisted only of Commercial loans, with carrying 
values of $26,840 and $428,170 respectively.   
 
Changes in the allowance for loan losses, by class, for the year ended December 31, 2021 were as 
follows: 
 

Commercial Construction Consumer
Commercial Real Estate and Land and other Unallocated Total

Allowance for credit losses

Beginning balance 1,556,238$         2,800,106$         839,582$          42,004$             459,857$      5,697,787$        
Charge-offs (268,304)              -                                 -                              -                              -                          (268,304)             
Recoveries 1,245                      -                                 -                              -                              -                          1,245                     
Provision (benefit) 453,556                518,632                (324,057)           261,536             (59,667)          850,000               

Ending balance 1,742,735$         3,318,738$         515,525$          303,540$          400,190$      6,280,728$        

Period-end amount allocated to:
Loans individually evaluated 

for impairment -$                              -$                              -$                           -$                           -$                       -$                             

Loans collectively evaluated 
for impairment 1,742,735            3,318,738            515,525             303,540             400,190         6,280,728           

Ending balance 1,742,735$         3,318,738$         515,525$          303,540$          400,190$      6,280,728$        

Loans

Individually evaluated for
impairment 26,840$                -$                              -$                           -$                           -$                       26,840$               

Collectively evaluated for
impairment 170,032,016      290,132,229      44,163,874      37,708,153      -                          542,036,272     

Ending balance 170,058,856$   290,132,229$   44,163,874$   37,708,153$   -$                       542,063,112$  
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NOTE 5 – LOANS AND THE ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES (CONTINUED) 
 
Changes in the allowance for loan losses, by class, for the year ended December 31, 2020 were as 
follows: 
 

Commercial Construction Consumer
Commercial Real Estate and Land and other Unallocated Total

Allowance for credit losses

Beginning balance 874,280$             2,143,306$         365,765$          82,150$             640,342$      4,105,843$        
Charge-offs (18,068)                 -                                 -                              -                              -                          (18,068)                
Recoveries 10,012                   -                                 -                              -                              -                          10,012                  
Provision (benefit) 690,014                656,800                473,817             (40,146)              (180,485)       1,600,000           

Ending balance 1,556,238$         2,800,106$         839,582$          42,004$             459,857$      5,697,787$        

Period-end amount allocated to:
Loans individually evaluated 

for impairment 268,304$             -$                              -$                           -$                           -$                       268,304$            

Loans collectively evaluated 
for impairment 1,287,934            2,800,106            839,582             42,004                459,857         5,429,483           

Ending balance 1,556,238$         2,800,106$         839,582$          42,004$             459,857$      5,697,787$        

Loans

Individually evaluated for
impairment 428,170$             -$                              -$                           555,736$          -$                       983,906$            

Collectively evaluated for
impairment 179,596,389      229,034,251      60,712,631      21,284,723      -                          490,627,994     

Ending balance 180,024,559$   229,034,251$   60,712,631$   21,840,459$   -$                       491,611,900$  

 
 

  



Bay Community Bancorp and Subsidiary 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
 
 

33 

NOTE 5 – LOANS AND THE ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES (CONTINUED) 
 
The following table summarizes loans to customers whose loan terms were modified in troubled debt 
restructurings during the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020: 
 

Pre-Modification Post-Modification
Outstanding Outstanding 

Number of Recorded Recorded
Contracts Investment Investment

Troubled Debt Restructurings
Commercial 1                            127,121$             127,121$             

1                            127,121$             127,121$             

Pre-Modification Post-Modification
Outstanding Outstanding 

Number of Recorded Recorded
Contracts Investment Investment

Troubled Debt Restructurings
Commercial 1                            130,524$             130,524$             

1                            130,524$             130,524$             

December 31, 2021

December 31, 2020

 
 
The above loans were modified and considered troubled debt restructurings because specific interest 
rate concessions or payment term concessions were granted to the borrowers.  The Company had no 
obligations to lend additional funds on the restructured loans as of December 31, 2021 and 2020. 
 
There were no troubled debt restructurings in 2021 and 2020 that subsequently defaulted within 
twelve months. 
 
Interest recognized for cash payments received on non-accrual loans was not significant for the years 
ended December 31, 2021 and 2020.  At December 31, 2021 and 2020, there were no loans over 90 
days past due that were still accruing interest. 
 
All loans modified due to COVID-19 under the CARES Act are separately monitored, and any request 
for continuation of relief beyond the initial modification will be reassessed at that time to determine 
if a further modification should be granted and if a downgrade in risk rating is appropriate.  There 
were no loans and 9 loans, in the amount of $0 and $14,291,314, that were modified under the CARES 
Act as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.   
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NOTE 6 – PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT 
 
Premises and equipment consisted of the following: 

2021 2020
Leasehold improvements 651,412$             872,697$             
Furniture, fixtures, and equipment 1,829,094            1,790,022            

2,480,506            2,662,719            
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization (1,188,266)          (890,844)             

1,292,240$         1,771,875$         

December 31,

 
 
Depreciation and amortization included in occupancy and equipment expense totaled $376,327 and 
$281,744 for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.  
 
 
NOTE 7 – LEASES 
 
The Company leases certain facilities where it conducts its operations on a month-to-month basis.  
The Company has entered into term leases for its Danville, San Mateo, and Oakland locations.  The 
Company is responsible for common area maintenance, taxes, and insurance to the extent these 
exceed the base year amounts.  The leases expire between February 2023 and November 2026.  
 
Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities are $1,466,088 and $1,471,509, respectively, as of December 
31, 2021 and $2,083,670 and $2,099,124, respectively, as of December 31, 2020.  The leases are 
considered operating leases and are included in other assets and other liabilities, respectively.  The 
Company had no finance leases or short-term leases as of December 31, 2021 and 2020. 
 
The right-of-use asset represents our right to use an underlying asset during the lease term.  
Operating lease liabilities represent our obligation to make lease payments arising from the lease.  
Right-of-use assets and operating lease liabilities are recognized based on the present value of the 
remaining lease payments using a discount rate that represents our incremental borrowing rate at 
the date of implementation of the new accounting standard. 
 
Our operating leases have one 5-year extension option at the then fair market value.  As these 
extension options are not reasonably certain of exercise, they are not included in the lease term.  
 
The minimum rental payments shown below are given for the existing lease obligations and are not 
a forecast of future rental expense.  The Company recognized rent expense of $627,154 and $589,515 
for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.  Rent expense is included in 
occupancy and equipment expense on the consolidated statements of income. 
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NOTE 7 – LEASES (CONTINUED) 
 
Future undiscounted lease payments for operating leases with initial terms of one year or more as of 
December 31, 2021 are as follows: 
 

Payments
2022 644,836$               
2023 564,032                 
2024 265,363                 
2025 122,606                 
2026 114,446                 

Thereafter -                          
Total undiscounted lease payments 1,711,283              

Less: imputed interest (239,774)                

Net lease liabilities 1,471,509$            

 
 
Additional information regarding our operating leases is summarized below for the year ended 
December 31, 2021:  
 

Cash paid for amounts included in the measurement
of lease liabilities for operating leases 627,154$               

Right-of-use assets obtained in exchange for 
lease liabilities 1,466,088$            

Weighted average remaining lease term in months 31                            

Weighted average discount rate 2.58%
 

 
 
NOTE 8 – INTEREST RECEIVABLE AND OTHER ASSETS 
 
Interest receivable and other assets are as follows: 
 

2021 2020

Deferred income tax asset, net 2,249,485$         1,319,414$         
Interest receiveable -- securities 287,254               237,014               
Interest and fees receiveable -- loans 1,591,748            2,158,081            
Prepaid expenses and other assets 2,628,596            2,941,769            
FHLB Stock 2,292,700            1,922,400            

9,049,783$         8,578,678$         

December 31,
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NOTE 9 – DEPOSITS 
 
Customer deposits consisted of the following: 
 

2021 2020

Demand 237,541,424$     206,031,544$     
NOW accounts 60,839,574         29,607,411         
Money market 220,306,972       170,386,643       
Savings 14,253,976         10,166,295         
Time, under $250,000 43,885,064         29,960,690         
Time, $250,000 or more 33,407,366         85,099,179         

610,234,376$     531,251,762$     

December 31,

 
 
Aggregate annual maturities of time deposits are as follows: 
 

Years Ending December 31, 
2022 41,374,670$       
2023 11,302,544         
2024 6,430,801            
2025 12,012,251         
2026 6,172,164            

77,292,430$       
 

 
Interest expense related to interest-bearing deposits consisted of the following: 
 

2021 2020
NOW accounts 75,590$               52,452$               
Money market 508,978               1,003,707            
Savings 20,970                 20,691                 
Time 574,798               1,467,744            

1,180,336$         2,544,594$         

Years Ended December 31,
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NOTE 10 – FHLB ADVANCES AND LINES OF CREDIT 
 
FHLB Advances 
 
During 2006, the Company entered into an arrangement with the FHLB under which it may borrow, 
on either a short-term or long-term basis, up to 25% of its assets provided that adequate collateral 
has been pledged.  No investment securities were pledged at December 31, 2021 or 2020, 
respectively.  Loans with an unpaid principal balance of $128,571,371 and $125,670,399 were 
pledged at December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.  Collateralized borrowing capacity at the FHLB 
was $104,293,667 and $97,341,135 as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively. 
 
The Company utilized $45,000,000 of its collateralized borrowing capacity for Letters of Credit at 
December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively, and had $33,500,000 and $37,500,000 outstanding 
borrowings from the FHLB as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.  Net remaining 
borrowing capacity at the FHLB was $25,793,667 and $14,841,135 as of December 31, 2021 and 
2020, respectively. 
 
Annual maturities and interest rates of FHLB advances are as follows: 
 

Years Ending December 31, Rate (%) Current Par ($)
2022 0.9051 14,000,000$         
2023 2.0400 9,500,000              
2024 2.0700 10,000,000            

33,500,000$         
 

 
Lines of Credit 
 
The Company has three unsecured available lines of credit totaling $31,500,000 with three of its 
correspondent banks.  There were no borrowings outstanding under these arrangements at 
December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.  
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NOTE 11 – INCOME TAXES 
 
Income tax expense for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, consists of the following: 
 

2021 2020
Current

Federal 2,443,742$         1,272,299$         
State 1,329,620            888,817               

3,773,362            2,161,116            
Deferred

Federal (460,268)             96,880                 
State (181,291)             (96,132)                

(641,559)             748                       
Income tax expense 3,131,803$         2,161,864$         

 
 
Reconciliation of the provision for income tax expense based on the federal statutory income tax rate 
to actual income tax expense is provided as follows: 
 

Amount Percent Amount Percent

Tax at statutory rate 2,214,495$         21% 1,480,362$       21%
State income tax 915,117               9% 607,039            9%
Bank owned life insurance (50,799)               0% (25,201)             0%
Equity compensation 55,584                 1% 42,910               1%
Other (2,594)                  1% 56,754               1%

3,131,803$         31% 2,161,864$       31%

2021 2020
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NOTE 11 – INCOME TAXES (CONTINUED) 
 
Deferred tax assets (liabilities) are comprised of the following: 
 

2021 2020
Deferred tax assets

Net operating loss carryforwards 26,504$               41,528$               
Allowance for loan losses 1,805,385            1,591,427            
Right-to-use lease liability 435,031               620,577               
Unrealized losses on available-for-sale investment securities 111,295               -                        
Nonaccrual loan interest 8,003                    30,710                 
Non-qualified stock options 305,312               264,248               
State income tax 229,970               188,552               
Other 396,640               176,272               

Total deferred tax assets 3,318,140            2,913,314            

Deferred tax liabilities
Depreciation on premises and equipment (288,100)             (346,370)             
Unrealized gains on available-for-sale investment securities -                        (165,160)             
Deferred loan costs (345,279)             (451,863)             
Right-to-use lease asset (433,428)             (616,008)             
Other (14,499)                (14,499)                

(1,081,306)          (1,593,900)          

Net deferred income tax asset 2,236,834$         1,319,414$         

 
The Company files a consolidated tax return in the U.S. federal tax jurisdiction and a combined report 
in the state of California tax jurisdiction. 
 
The tax benefit of net operating losses (“NOL”), temporary differences, and credit carryforwards are 
recorded as an asset to the extent that management assesses that realization is “more likely than not.”  
Realization of the future tax benefits is dependent on the Company’s ability to generate sufficient 
taxable income within the carryforward period.  During the years ended December 31, 2021 and 
2020, the valuation allowance remained at $0. 
 
The Company has usable net operating loss carryforwards of approximately $126,209 for federal tax 
purposes that begin to expire in 2022.  The Tax Reform Act of 1986 and the California Conformity Act 
of 1987 imposes substantial restrictions on the utilization of net operating loss carryforwards when 
an “ownership change,” as defined in the Internal Revenue Code, has occurred.  Some of the 
Company’s federal and state net operating losses have each been limited to usage of approximately 
$71,500 annually due to ownership changes. 
 

  



Bay Community Bancorp and Subsidiary 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

 
 

 40 

NOTE 12 – RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 
 
The Company, in the normal course of business, makes loans to and received deposits from its 
directors, officers, principal shareholders, and their associates.  In management’s opinion, these 
transactions are on substantially the same terms as comparable transactions with other customers 
of the Company.   
 
The Company’s related party loans are summarized below: 
 

2021 2020

Aggregate amount outstanding, beginning of year 2,846,261$         4,174,458$         
New loans, advances, or additions during year 2,306,152            2,075,000            
Repayments during year (1,844,793)          (3,403,197)          

Aggregate amount outstanding, end of year 3,307,620$         2,846,261$         

Unused loan commitments 1,660,847$         2,700,060$         

December 31,

 
 
Related party deposits amounted to $15,270,224 and $12,964,446 as of December 31, 2021 and 
2020, respectively.   
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NOTE 13 – COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 
 
Financial Instruments with Off-Balance-Sheet Risk 
 
The Company is a party to financial instruments with off-balance-sheet risk in the normal course of 
business in order to meet the financing needs of its customers and to reduce its own exposure to 
fluctuations in interest rates.  These financial instruments consist of commitments to extend credit 
and standby letters of credit.  These instruments involve, to varying degrees, elements of credit and 
interest rate risk in excess of the amount recognized in the balance sheets. 
 
The Company’s exposure to credit loss in the event of non-performance by the other party to the 
financial instrument for commitments to extend credit and standby letters of credit is represented 
by the contractual amount of those instruments.  The Company uses the same credit policies in 
making commitments and standby letters of credit as it does for loans included on the balance sheets. 
 
At December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Company had commitments to extend credit of approximately 
$142,357,273 and $119,524,456, respectively.  There were $0 and $400,000 in standby letters of 
credit issued at December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively. 
 
Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to a customer as long as there is no violation 
of any condition established in the contract.  Commitments generally have fixed expiration dates or 
other termination clauses and may require payment of a fee.  Since some of the commitments are 
expected to expire without being drawn upon, the total commitment amounts do not necessarily 
represent future cash requirements.  The Company evaluates each customer’s creditworthiness on a 
case-by-case basis.   
 
The amount of collateral obtained, if deemed necessary by the Company upon extension of credit, is 
based on management’s credit evaluation of the borrower.  Collateral held varies, but may include 
accounts receivable, inventory, and deeds of trust on residential real estate and income-producing 
commercial properties. 
 
Standby Letters of Credit 
 
Standby letters of credit are conditional commitments issued by the Company to guarantee the 
performance or financial obligation of a customer to a third party.  The credit risk involved in issuing 
letters of credit is essentially the same as that involved in extending loans to customers. 
 
Contingencies 
 
The Company is subject to legal proceedings and claims that arise in the ordinary course of business.  
In the opinion of management, the amount of ultimate liability with respect to such actions will not 
materially affect the financial position or results of operations of the Company. 
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NOTE 14 – NON-INTEREST INCOME AND REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS 
 
All of the Company’s revenue from contracts with customers within the scope of ASC 606 is 
recognized in non-interest income.  Revenues that fall within the scope of ASC 606 include service 
charges and fee income and revenue from various sources included in other income.  Certain non-
interest income streams such as government grants and fees associated with SBA servicing rights 
are not within the scope of the new guidance.   
 
The Company earns fees from its deposit customers for account maintenance, transaction-based 
activity, and overdraft services.  Account maintenance fees consist primarily of account fees and 
analyzed account fees charged on deposit accounts on a monthly basis.  The performance obligation 
is satisfied, and the fees are recognized on a monthly basis as the service period is completed.  
Transaction-based fees on deposit accounts are charged to deposit customers for specific services 
provided to the customer, such as non-sufficient funds fees, overdraft fees, and wire fees.  The 
performance obligation is completed as the transaction occurs, and the fees are recognized at the 
time each specific service is provided to the customer.  Premiums on the sale of loans are 
recognized when the loan is sold, and performance obligation is complete.  Other income includes 
income from various sources and is recognized when the performance obligation is complete. 
 
Non-interest income consisted of the following for the years ended December 31: 
 

2021 2020
Government grants 1,826,265$         202,898$             
Change in cash surrender value of BOLI 241,899               120,005               
Service charges 161,400               191,423               
FHLB dividend 120,658               99,121                 
Loan document and packaging fees 113,225               94,675                 
SBA servicing income 49,637                 72,441                 
Other 98,440                 40,338                 
Gain on sale of loans -                        317,806               

Total non-interest income 2,611,524$         1,138,707$         
 

 
 
NOTE 15 – GOVERNMENT GRANTS 
 
The Company was awarded $1,826,265 and $202,898 in 2021 and 2020, respectively, by the United 
States Treasury Department in recognition of its community development activities under the 
Community Development Financial Institutions Rapid Response (RRP) and Bank Enterprise Award 
(BEA) Programs.  Management believes that the Company has complied, in all material aspects, with 
all of the covenants and requirements under the RRP and BEA agreements and that it is not, and has 
not been, in default with any of the terms, requirements, or minimum levels of qualified activities of 
such agreements.  
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NOTE 16 – OTHER EXPENSES 
 
Other expenses consisted of the following for the years ended December 31: 
 

2021 2020

Data processing 1,873,911$         1,458,991$         
Professional fees 565,363               636,025               
Loan related expenses 288,684               306,723               
Regulatory assessments 491,834               241,359               
Advertising 226,958               223,575               
Title company deposit expenses 178,170               89,997                 
Insurance 108,351               85,476                 
Donations 98,174                 46,715                 
Sundry losses 9,861                    4,895                    
Other operating expenses 730,749               714,301               

Total other expenses 4,572,055$         3,808,057$         

 
 
NOTE 17 – EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS 
 
Defined Contribution Plan 
 
The Company adopted a 401(k) defined contribution plan effective January 1, 1997.  All employees 
of the Company may participate in the plan upon completion of certain eligibility requirements.  The 
Company matches employee’s contributions on a discretionary basis.  The Company made 
contributions of $263,516 and $238,946 for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, 
respectively. 
 
 
NOTE 18 – OTHER POST-RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS 
 
During 2019, the Bank established a non-qualified deferred compensation plan for directors and 
certain officers of the Bank.  Participants in the non-qualified deferred compensation plan may elect 
to defer a portion of their compensation to future periods.  Participants in the non-qualified plan are 
fully vested in contributions made and any earnings generated as a result of their contributions.  At 
December 31, 2021 and 2020, the participants in the non-qualified plan have deferred $95,205 and 
$40,164, respectively.   
 
During 2020, the Bank awarded an executive officer a salary continuation plan.  Under the plan, the 
participant will be provided with a fixed annual retirement benefit for 10 years after retirement.  The 
Bank is also responsible for certain pre-retirement death benefits under the plan.  The participant 
vests in the benefit over a ten year period, with no vesting occurring until the completion of the fifth 
year of the plan.  As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, a salary continuation liability of $150,289 and 
$97,420, respectively, had been accrued by the Bank.  The salary continuation liability is reflected in 
Other Liabilities on the Company’s balance sheet.  Expense recognized under these plans totaled 
$52,869 and $97,420 for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.    
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NOTE 18 – OTHER POST-RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS (CONTINUED) 
 
In conjunction with the salary continuation plan, the Bank has purchased various life insurance 
policies of which the Bank is the owner and beneficiary.  The policies are designed to offset the Bank’s 
obligations associated with the salary continuation plan.  However, the cash surrender values of the 
various life insurance policies represent assets of the Bank and the Bank’s obligations may be 
satisfied using the general assets of the Bank.  
 
 
NOTE 19 – SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY 
 
Dividend Restrictions 
 
Upon declaration by the Board of Directors, all shareholders of record will be entitled to receive 
dividends.  The California Financial Code provides that, unless the Company receives prior approval 
from the California Commissioner of Financial Institutions, the total amount of dividend payments a 
California state-chartered Company can make in any calendar year cannot exceed the lesser of: 
(1) the Company’s retained earnings or (2) the Company’s net income for its last three fiscal years, 
less distributions made to shareholders during the same three-year period.   
 
Cash dividends paid to shareholders were $1,059,020 and $0 in 2021 and 2020, respectively.  
 
Earnings per Share 
 
Earnings per share (EPS) is calculated based on the weighted average common shares outstanding 
during the period.  Basic EPS excludes dilution and is calculated by dividing net income available to 
common shareholders by the weighted average common shares outstanding.  Diluted EPS reflects 
the potential dilution that could occur if securities or other contracts to issue common stock were 
exercised or converted into common stock.  

Income Shares Per-Share
(Numerator) (Denominator) Amount

Basic EPS:
Net income available to

common shareholders 7,413,410$       8,816,287         0.84$                 
Effect of dilutive securities:

Stock options 259,837             
Diluted EPS:

Net income available to common
shareholders plus assumed
conversions 7,413,410$       9,076,124         0.82$                 

Year Ended December 31, 2021
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NOTE 19 – SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY (CONTINUED) 
 

Income Shares Per-Share
(Numerator) (Denominator) Amount

Basic EPS:
Net income available to

common shareholders 4,887,479$       8,743,954         0.56$                 
Effect of dilutive securities:

Stock options 221,288             
Diluted EPS:

Net income available to common
shareholders plus assumed
conversions 4,887,479$       8,965,242         0.55$                 

Year Ended December 31, 2020

 
 
 
Stock Option Plan 
 
During 2012, the Board of Directors and shareholders approved the adoption of the Community Bank 
of the Bay 2012 Stock Option Plan.  The plan includes both non-statutory stock options, which may 
be granted to directors, employees, and consultants, and incentive stock options, which may be 
granted to employees.  The price of non-statutory and incentive stock options may not be less than 
100%, respectively, of the fair market value of the common stock on the date of the grant. 
 
However, if an individual at the time of the grant owns stock representing more than 10% of the 
voting rights of all classes of the stock, then the price of the stock options may not be less than 110% 
of the fair market value of the common stock on the date of the grant.  The term of stock options is 
determined by the Board of Directors, but may not exceed ten years from the date of the grant unless, 
in the case of an incentive stock option, an individual at the time of grant owns stock representing 
more than 10% of the voting rights of all classes of the stock, then the maximum term is five years.  
Shares of the Company’s common stock reserved under this plan amounted to 959,489 and 1,093,627 
as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.  
 
The fair value of each option granted is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes 
options-pricing model.  The following weighted-average assumptions were used for grants in 2021: 
no expected dividends; expected volatility of 34.64%; risk-free interest rate of 1.58%; and expected 
options term of ten years.  There were no option grants in 2020.   
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NOTE 19 – SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY (CONTINUED) 
 
The following table summarizes information about stock options outstanding at December 31, 2021: 
 

Weighted Average
Shares Exercise Price

Outstanding at beginning of period 988,263               5.00$                      
Granted 83,000                 7.81$                      
Exercised (82,422)               3.85$                      
Forfeited / canceled / expired (73,883)               4.51$                      
Outstanding at end of period 914,958               5.40$                      

 
 
The following table summarizes information about stock options outstanding at December 31, 2020: 
 

Weighted Average
Shares Exercise Price

Outstanding at beginning of period 1,141,742           4.83$                      
Granted -                        -$                        
Exercised (76,179)               3.60$                      
Forfeited / canceled / expired (77,300)               3.93$                      
Outstanding at end of period 988,263               5.00$                      

 
 
The Company recognized $417,009 and $357,036 in stock option expense for the years ended 
December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.  There is approximately $532,573 and $582,379 in 
unrecognized compensation cost remaining as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively, which 
is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of 3.02 years and 2.42 years, 
respectively.   
 
The Company had 393,792 and 463,529 incentive stock options and 521,166 and 524,734 non-
statutory stock options outstanding as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.  
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NOTE 19 – SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY (CONTINUED) 
 
A summary of options outstanding follows: 
 

2021 2020
Weighted-average fair value of

options granted during the year 3.61$                   -$                          

Intrinsic value of options exercised 293,822$            195,723$            

Options exercisable at year end 728,997               786,619               
Weighted-average exercise price 4.88$                   4.51$                   
Intrinsic value 1,780,706$         1,254,785$         
Weighted-average remaining
    contractual life 3.84 Years 4.11 Years

Options outstanding at year end 914,958               988,263               
Weighted-average exercise price 5.40$                   5.00$                   
Intrinsic value 1,806,666$         1,275,085$         
Weighted-average remaining
    contractual life 4.71 Years 4.81 Years

Year Ended December 31,
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NOTE 20 – REGULATORY MATTERS 
 
The Company (on a consolidated basis) and the Bank are subject to various regulatory capital 
requirements administered by federal and state banking agencies.  Failure to meet minimum capital 
requirements can initiate certain mandatory – and possibly additional discretionary – actions by 
regulators that, if undertaken, could have a direct material effect on the Company’s consolidated 
financial statements.  Under capital adequacy guidelines and the regulatory framework for Prompt 
Corrective Action (PCA), the Company and the Bank must meet specific capital guidelines that involve 
quantitative measures of their assets, liabilities, and certain off-balance-sheet items as calculated 
under regulatory accounting practices.  The capital amounts and classifications are also subject to 
qualitative judgments by the regulators about components, risk-weightings, and other factors. 
 
Quantitative measures established by regulation to ensure capital adequacy require the Company 
and the Bank to maintain minimum amounts and ratios of Common Equity Tier 1, Total, and Tier 1 
capital to risk-weighted assets, and of Tier 1 capital to average assets.  Each of these components is 
defined in the regulations.  Management believes that the Company and the Bank met all capital 
adequacy requirements to which it is subject as of December 31, 2021 and 2020. 
 
Effective January 1, 2020, the federal banking agencies jointly issued a final rule on the Community 
Bank Leverage Ratio (“CBLR”), which provides for an optional, simplified measure of capital 
adequacy for qualifying community banking organizations, consistent with Section 201 of the 
Economic Growth, Regulatory Relief, and Consumer Protection Act (the “Economic Growth Act”).  
Qualifying community banking organizations are defined as having less than $10 billion in total 
consolidated assets and that meet the following risk-based qualifying criteria: a CBLR of greater than 
nine (9) percent; off-balance sheet exposure of twenty-five (25) percent or less of total consolidated 
assets; and not an advanced-approaches institution.  Such a community banking organization would 
not be subject to other risk-based and leverage capital requirements (including the Basel III and Basel 
IV requirements), and would be considered to have met the “well-capitalized” ratio requirements.  
The CBLR is determined by dividing a financial institution’s tangible equity capital by its average total 
consolidated assets.  The rule further describes what is included in tangible equity capital and 
average total consolidated assets.  Qualifying banks may opt into and out of the CBLR framework at 
any time.  While the Company is a qualifying community banking organization, it has not opted into 
the CBLR framework at this time.   
 
To be categorized as well-capitalized, banks must maintain minimum total risk-based, Tier 1 risk-
based, and Tier 1 leverage ratios as set forth in the following table.  The Company’s and the Bank’s 
actual capital amounts and ratios are presented in the table below: 
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NOTE 20 – REGULATORY MATTERS (CONTINUED) 
 
 

Amount Ratio Amount Amount
December 31, 2021:

Company
Tier 1 capital

(to risk-weighted assets) 68,122,000$       12.34% 33,117,600$    > 6.0% N / A N / A
Common equity Tier 1

(to risk-weighted assets) 68,122,000$       12.34% 24,838,200$    > 4.5% N / A N / A
Total risk-based capital

(to risk-weighted assets) 74,564,000$       13.51% 44,156,800$    > 8.0% N / A N / A
Tier 1 capital

(to average assets) 68,122,000$       9.19% 29,643,600$    > 4.0% N / A N / A

December 31, 2021:
Bank
Tier 1 capital

(to risk-weighted assets) 67,806,000$       12.28% 33,117,600$    > 6.0% 44,156,800$    > 8.0%
Common equity Tier 1

(to risk-weighted assets) 67,806,000$       12.28% 24,838,200$    > 4.5% 35,877,400$    > 6.5%
Total risk-based capital

(to risk-weighted assets) 74,248,000$       13.45% 44,156,800$    > 8.0% 55,196,000$    > 10.0%
Tier 1 capital

(to average assets) 67,806,000$       9.15% 29,643,600$    > 4.0% 37,054,500$    > 5.0%

December 31, 2020:
Bank
Tier 1 capital

(to risk-weighted assets) 61,121,000$       13.14% 27,899,580$    > 6.0% 37,199,440$    > 8.0%
Common equity Tier 1

(to risk-weighted assets) 61,121,000$       13.14% 20,924,685$    > 4.5% 30,224,545$    > 6.5%
Total risk-based capital

(to risk-weighted assets) 66,933,000$       14.39% 37,199,440$    > 8.0% 46,499,300$    > 10.0%
Tier 1 capital

(to average assets) 61,121,000$       9.31% 26,258,240$    > 4.0% 32,822,800$    > 5.0%

To be well
For Capital Capitalized under

Actual Adequacy Purposes PCA
Ratio Ratio
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NOTE 21 – DISCLOSURES ABOUT FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 
 
Fair values of financial instruments are management’s estimates of the values at which instruments 
could be exchanged in a transaction between willing parties.  These estimates are subjective and may 
vary significantly from amounts that would be realized in actual transactions.  Further, the tax 
ramifications related to the realization of the unrealized gains and losses can have a significant effect 
on the fair value estimates and have not been considered in any of these estimates. 
 
The estimated fair values of the Company’s financial instruments as of December 31 are 
approximately as follows: 
 

Fair Value Carrying Estimated Carrying Estimated
Hierarchy Amounts Fair Values Amounts Fair Values

Financial assets:
Cash and cash 

equivalents Level 1 81,942,531$  81,942,531$  86,630,824$  86,630,824$  
Interest bearing deposits

in banks Level 2 11,159,738    11,218,469    11,845,497    11,966,176    
Securities

Available-for-sale Level 2 53,010,204    53,010,204    24,777,599    24,777,599    
Held to maturity Level 3 18,000,000    18,000,000    9,000,000      9,000,000      

FHLB stock Level 2 2,292,700      2,292,700      1,922,400      1,922,400      
Loans, net Level 3 533,520,674  530,526,090  484,092,200  484,140,472  
Interest receivable Level 2 1,879,002      1,879,002      2,395,095      2,395,095      

Financial liabilities:
Non-maturity deposits Level 2 532,941,946  533,661,000  416,191,893  417,100,000  
Time deposits Level 2 77,292,430    78,430,122    115,059,869  115,695,000  
Secured borrowings Level 2 33,500,000    33,755,000    37,500,000    38,458,000    
Interest payable Level 2 101,176          101,176          136,798          136,798          

Off-balance-sheet liabilities:
Undisbursed loan 

commitments Level 3 1,423,573      1,195,245      1,037,917      871,445          

2021 2020

 
 
 
The following table presents information about the Company’s assets and liabilities measured at fair 
value on a recurring basis as of December 31, 2021 and 2020.  These tables indicate the fair value 
hierarchy of the valuation techniques utilized by the Company to determine such fair value. 
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NOTE 21 – DISCLOSURES ABOUT FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 
 

Significant
Quoted Prices in Other Significant

Active Markets for Observable Unobservable
December 31, Identical Assets Inputs Inputs

Description of Assets 2021 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

Available-for-sale securities:
Mortgage-backed securities 31,184,317$  -$                       31,184,317$  -$                 
CMOs 12,220,732    -                         12,220,732    -                   
Municipals - taxable 7,636,240       -                         7,636,240       -                   
Municipals - exempt 1,968,915       -                         1,968,915       -                   

Total 53,010,204$  -$                       53,010,204$  -$                 
 

 
 

Significant
Quoted Prices in Other Significant

Active Markets for Observable Unobservable
December 31, Identical Assets Inputs Inputs

Description of Assets 2020 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

Available-for-sale securities:
Mortgage-backed securities 9,604,132$    -$                       9,604,132$    -$                 
CMOs 9,864,068       -                         9,864,068       -                   
Municipals - taxable 3,282,000       -                         3,282,000       -                   
Municipals - exempt 2,027,399       -                         2,027,399       -                   

Total 24,777,599$  -$                       24,777,599$  -$                 
 

 
Transfers between levels in the fair value hierarchy are recognized on the actual date of the event or 
circumstances that caused the transfer, which generally corresponds to the Company’s quarterly 
valuation process. 
 
Fair value measurements for impaired loans are based on either collateral values supported by 
appraisals or observed market prices.  Any loss recognized on impaired loans is not recorded directly 
as an adjustment to current earnings but rather as an adjustment component in determining the 
overall adequacy of the allowance for loan losses.  Such adjustments to the estimated fair value of 
impaired loans may result in increases or decreases to the provision for loan losses recorded in 
current earnings.  The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of 
each class of financial instrument for which it is practicable to estimate that value: 
 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 
 
For short-term instruments, including cash and due from banks, the carrying amount is a reasonable 
estimate of fair value. 
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NOTE 21 – DISCLOSURES ABOUT FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 
 
Interest-Bearing Deposits in Banks 
 
Represents time deposits held at other financial institutions.  The fair values are estimated using a 
discounted cash flow calculation that applies interest rates currently being offered on certificates to 
a schedule of aggregated expected monthly maturities. 
 
Securities 
 
Fair values for investment securities are based on quoted market prices when available or through 
the use of alternative approaches, such as a matrix or model pricing, when market quotes are not 
readily accessible or available. 
 
FHLB Stock and Other Investments 
 
For FHLB stock and other investments, the carrying amount is a reasonable estimate of fair value. 
 
Loans 
 
For variable rate loans that reprice frequently and with no significant change in credit risk, fair values 
are based on carrying values.  The fair values for fixed rate loans are estimated using discounted cash 
flow analysis, using interest rates currently being offered for loans with similar terms to borrowers 
of similar credit quality.  The carrying amount of interest receivable approximates its fair value.  The 
Company’s allowance for loan and lease losses is a reasonable estimate of the valuation allowance 
needed to adjust computed fair values for the quality of certain loans in the portfolio. 
 
Interest Receivable and Payable 
 
For interest receivable and payable, the carrying amount is estimated to be the fair value. 
 
Impaired Loans 
 
The Company utilizes current appraisals and applies discount factors estimated and modeled for 
consistency by management to arrive at the estimate of fair value for all collateral dependent loans. 
 
Deposit Liabilities 
 
The fair values disclosed for non-maturity deposits (e.g., interest and non-interest checking, 
statement savings, and money market accounts) are, by definition, equal to the amount payable at 
the reporting date (i.e., their carrying amounts).  The fair values for fixed-rate certificates of deposit 
are estimated using a discounted cash flow calculation that applies interest rates currently being 
offered on certificates to a schedule of aggregated expected monthly maturities on time deposits.  The 
carrying amount of interest payable approximates its fair value. 
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NOTE 21 – DISCLOSURES ABOUT FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 
 
FHLB Borrowings 
 
The fair value of the borrowings is calculated based on the discounted value of the contractual cash 
flows using current rates at which such borrowings can currently be obtained. 
 
Commitments to Extend Credit 
 
The fair value of commitments is estimated using the fees currently charged to enter into similar 
agreements, taking into account the remaining terms of the agreements and the present 
creditworthiness of the counterparties.  For fixed-rate loan commitments, fair value also considers 
the difference between current levels of interest rates and the committed rates. 
 
Limitations 
 
Fair value estimates are made at a specific point in time, based on relevant market information and 
other information about the financial instrument.  These estimates do not reflect any premium or 
discount that could result from offering for sale at one time the Company’s entire holdings of a 
particular financial instrument. 
 
 
NOTE 22 – EMERGENCY CAPITAL INVESTMENT PROGRAM 
 
On December 14, 2021, the U.S. Department of the Treasury (the Treasury) announced the 
deployment of approximately $9 billion in investments through the Emergency Capital Investment 
Program (ECIP) to increase lending to small and minority-owned businesses and low-and moderate-
income consumers in underserved communities.  ECIP enables the Treasury to make direct 
investments in banks, credit unions, and holding companies that are designated as a Community 
Development Financial Institution (CDFI) or a Minority Depository Institution (MDI).   
 
The Company’s wholly-owned subsidiary, Community Bank of the Bay, is a CDFI, and has been offered 
an ECIP investment by the Treasury.  The Company is reviewing the proposed terms and conditions 
of the ECIP investment offer. 
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NOTE 23 – PARENT ONLY CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
 
The following are the condensed financial statements of Bay Community Bancorp and should be 
read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements. 
 

2021 2020

ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents 213,808$               -$                        
Investment in bank subsidiary 67,716,776            61,782,216            
Interest receivable and other assets 104,985                 20,149                    

Total assets 68,035,569$         61,802,365$         

LIABILITIES:
Accounts Payable 2,712$                    5,278$                    
Accrued Expenses -                               50,000                    

Total liabilities 2,712                      55,278                    

SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY 68,032,857            61,747,087            

Total liabilities and shareholder's equity 68,035,569$         61,802,365$         

BAY COMMUNITY BANCORP – (PARENT ONLY)
BALANCE SHEETS

ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY
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NOTE 23 – PARENT ONLY CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
 

2021 2020

INCOME:
Dividend income from subsidiary 1,227,089$            -$                        

Total income 1,227,089              -                          

EXPENSE:
General and administrative 467,335                 85,029                    

Income (loss) before income taxes and equity in 
undistributed income of subsidiary 759,754                 (85,029)                  
Income tax benefit 59,836                    20,149                    
Equity in net earnings of subsidiary 6,593,820              4,952,359              

NET INCOME 7,413,410$            4,887,479$            

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME, NET OF TAX:

Change in unrealized gains and losses
on investment in subsidiary (376,462)$             -$                             

Income tax (expense) benefit 111,653                 -                               

Other comprehensive loss net of tax (264,809)                -                          

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 7,148,601$            4,887,479$            

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31

BAY COMMUNITY BANCORP – (PARENT ONLY)
STATEMENTS OF INCOME AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
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NOTE 23 – PARENT ONLY CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
 

2021 2020

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net income 7,413,410$            4,887,479$            
Adjustments to reconcile net earnings to

cash from operating activities:
Equity in income of subsidiary (6,593,820)            (4,952,359)            
Stock option expense 417,009                 29,750                    
Net change in other assets and liabilities (137,403)                35,130                    

Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities 1,099,196              -                          

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Investment in bank subsidiary -                          (56,829,857)          

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities -                          (56,829,857)          

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Cash dividends paid (1,059,020)            -                          
Proceeds from exercise of options 173,632                 -                          
Proceeds from exchange of stock -                          56,829,857            

Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities (885,388)                56,829,857            

NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS 213,808                 -                          

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, beginning of year -                          -                          

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, end of year 213,808$               -$                        

BAY COMMUNITY BANCORP – (PARENT ONLY)
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,

 
 
 
 
NOTE 24 – SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 
 
The Company has evaluated the effects of subsequent events that have occurred after the period 
ending December 31, 2021 and through March 28, 2022, which is the date the consolidated financial 
statements were available to be issued. 
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nothing else.






